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Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9474 1.800^-3345 Ext 9474

Fax; 603-271-4230 TOD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.Dh.gov

February 17, 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to enter into a Retroactive, Sole Source amendment to an existing contract
with The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc. (VC#154480 - BOOl), Laconia, NH to continue
providing a Permanent Housing Program to individuals experiencing homelessness through the
Federal Continuum of Care Program, by exercising a renewal option by Increasing the price
limitation by $43,489 from $42,250 to $85,739 and by extending the completion date frohi January
31, 2021 to January 31,2022 effective retroactive to February 1,2021 upon Governor and Council
approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on January 22, 2020, item
#13 and most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on May 6, 2020, item #41.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2021, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVC, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING-SHELTER PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Numtier

Current

Budget

Increased

{Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svcs
TBD

$18,305 $0 $18,305

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svcs
TBD

$23,945 $18,121 $42,066

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svcs
.  TBD

$0 $25,368 $25,368

Total $42,260 $43,489 $86,739

The DepQrlmenl of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communitieB and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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His Excellency, Governor Chrtetopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 2

EXPLANATION

This request is Retroactive because the Department did not receive the award
determination for additional funding from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD) in enough time to process the request for renewal prior to the current contract
expiration date.

This request is Sole Source because federal regulations require the Department to
specify each vendor's name during the annual, federal Continuum of Care Program renewal
application process, prior to the grant award being issued.

Annually, HUD oversees a Continuum of Care Program competitive application process.
As part of this process, the Department is required to provide HUD with each potential vendor,
and HUD evaluates vendor applications. Based on that evaluation process, HUD directs the
Department to provide grant awards in specific amounts to vendors.

The purpose of this request is to continue delivery of a Permanent Housing Program that
provides permanent housing and supportive services, as well as associated administrative
services, to individuals facing homelessness. Services provided increase the ability of
participants to live more independently.

The Lakes Region Mental Health Center will provide permanent housing and supportive
services to seven (7) individuals who are experiencing homelessness or chronic homelessness,
at any given time, from February 1,2021 through January 31. 2022.

The Department ensures contract compliance and vendor by ensuring:

• Annual compliance reviews are performed and include the collection of data relating to
compliance with administrative rules and contractual agreements.

•  Statistical reports are submitted by the vendor on a semi-annual basis which include
various demographic information and income and expense reports, including match
dollars.

• Maintenance of timely and accurate data entry In the New Hampshire Homeless
Management Information System, which is the primary reporting tool for outcomes and
activities of shelter and housing programs funded through these contracts.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1, Subsection 2.1. of the original contract, the parties have the
option to extend the agreement for up to one (1) additional year, contingent upon satisfactory
delivery of services, available fundi^, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council
approval. The Department is exercising its option to renew for the one (1) available year.

Should the Govemor and Council not authorize this request, Permanent Housing and
supportive services for homeless individuals may not be available in their communities, and there
may be an increase in demand for senrices placed upon the region's local welfare authorities.
Lack of services may also cause individuals to become homeless.

Area served: Laconia

Source of Funds: CFDA# 14.667. FAIN# NH0002L1T002012

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

i nri A ChiKinAHA vLori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Continuum of Care, Summer Street Permanent Housing contract is by and
between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or
"Department") and The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on January 22, 2020 (Item #13), as amended on May 6, 2020 (Item #41), the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
Standard Contract Language, Section 2. Renewal, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement
of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

January 31, 2022

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$85,739

3. Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3, Project Costs: Payment
Schedule: Review by the State, Subsection 3.4 Payment of Project Costs, Paragraph 3.4.1, to
read:

3.4.1 The State agrees to provide payment on a cost reimbursement basis for actual, eligible
expenditures incurred in the fulfillment of this agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line items as specified in Exhibit B-2, Budget - Amendment #2 and as defined
by HUD under the provisions of Public Law 102-550 and other applicable regulations,
subject to the availability of sufficient funds.

4. Modify Exhibit B-1 Budget - Amendment #1 by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit B-1 Budget
(2020/2021) - Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

5. Add Exhibit B-2, Budget (2022) - Amendment #2 which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

Ma.P
The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc. Amendment #2 Contractor Initials I

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-12-A02 Page 1 of 3 Date

•OS



DocuSign Envelope ID: 43257A6B-B337-4A4C-9C6D-9BFD8AAA69F1

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be retroactively effective to February 1, 2021 upon the date
of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

2/25/2021

Date

2/19/2021

Date

—DoeuSigned by:

Name'^'^^'^^^ santanieiio
Title: Director

The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.

Ooeo8tgn«d by:

I  M,. fyidu/rji
Pritchard

Title: ceo

The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc. Amendment #2

SS-2020-BHS-04.PERMA-12-A02 Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

OecuSlgntd by;

2/26/2021

Date Pinos

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

The Lakes Region Mental Health Center. Inc. Amendment #2

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-12-A02 Page 3 of 3
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secrctar>' of State of the State ofNcw Hampshire, do hereby certify that THE LAKES REGION MENTAL

HEALTH CENTER, INC is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on July

14, 1969. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Sccretar>' of State"s office have been received and is in good

standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 64124

Certificate Number: 0005261342

Urn

A

<1

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affi.xed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 17th day of Fcbruar>'A.D. 2021.

William M. Gardner

Secreiarv of State



DocuSign Envelope ID: 43257A6B-B337-4A4C-9C6D-9BFD8AAA69F1

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1 . Matthew Soza , hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of The Lakes Region Mental Health Center. Inc. .
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following Is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on February 23. , 2021 at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and
voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Margaret M. Pritchard. Chief Executive Officer (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of The Lakes Reoion Mental Health Center. Inc. to enter into contracts or
agreernents with the State (Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of Its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
positlon(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: February 23. 2021

mature of Elected OfficerSignature
Name: Matthew Soza

Title: Co-Treasurer

Rev. 03/025/2020
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
PATE (MU/DorrrYY)

06/26/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFRRMAT1VELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the ceftiflcate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certlflcate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsementfs).

PRODUCER

MTM Insurance Assoclstas

1320 Osgood Street

NerthAndover MA 01845

jaffrjy Morrissetie

(976)681.5777

certlflcatea@mtmlnsure.com

IKSUREJUS) APFOROINO COVERAGE NAICI

INSURER A
ACE AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY

MSURED

The Lakes Region Mental Health Center. Inc.

40 Beacon Street Eest

Laconia NH 03246

INSURER 0 AIM MutuallnsuranceCompany

INSURER C

INSURER 0

MSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER; 2020 Master REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED, NOTVlflTHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WTTH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SU8JECTT0 AU THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

MSA
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER Fwsrfflirai rmrrown UMns 1

A

X COMMERCIAL OSNERAL LIABLITY

E  1 X| OCCUR

TBO 06/26/2020 06/26/2021

EACH OCCURRENCE
, 1,000.000

CLAIMSJMD
TO AEM LD

PREMISES (Ei oeourrsneel
( 250,000

MED EXPIAnvons oenonl
j 25.000

PERSONAL < AOV INJURY , 1.000.000

OENl AOOREOATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE
, 3.000.000

POLICY Q n LOG
OTMEH:

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGO , 3.000.000

$

A

I ALrrOMOeiLEUABiUTY

TBD 06/28/2020 06/26/2021

COMBINED SINGLE UMrr
(E» iokMnO

% 2,000,000

ANY AUTO

IHEDULED
rros
IN^OWNED
rros ONLY

BODLY INJURY (Per Mrton) S

OVWED
AUTOS ONLY

HIRED
AtJTOSONLY

8C
AL

BODILY INJURY (Per Kcldani) S

X X
NC
AL

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per ecddent)

t

I

A

X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LlAB

X OCCUR

CLA/M&MAOE
TBO 06/26/2020 06/26/2021

EACHOCCURRENCE
, 4,000,000

AGGREGATE ( 4,000.000

1 OED 1 RETENTION S 10.000 | s

B

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EUPLOYERr UABUTY y/N
ANY PROPRIETOR4*RTNER/EXEClfnve rTTl
l>FFICER/ME)>eER EXCLUDED?
<hUnd«tofylnNH) ' '
II MS. desedb* undsr
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS Mem

H/A ECC-600-4000907-2020A 06/26/2020 06/26/2021

w PER OTH-
^ STATUTE ER

EL. EACHAiCCIDE>rr ^ 1,000,000

El. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE 5 1.000,000

El. DISEASE - POlCY LIMIT
, 1,000,000

A
Professional Liability

TBD 06/26/2020 06/26/2021

Occurrence per Incident

Aggregate Limit

Retro Date

5.000,000

7,000,000

6/26/2011

OESCRtPTION OF OPERATIONS 1LOCATIOKS / VEHICLES (ACOR0101, AMItlonN RtRiviii Sch«eul». m«y b* Mtichsd If mor« ipae* M requIrM}

This ceruncale of Insurance represents coverage currently in effect and may or may not be In comi^lance with any written contract.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of New Hampshire Department of Health & Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301

•I'

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE OELtVEREO IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

® 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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0
Lakes Region

Mental Health C

Mission Vision & Values

Lakes Region Mental Health Center's mission is to provide integrated mental and
physical health care for people with mental illness while creating wellness and
understanding in our community.

(Revised & Approved by the Board of Directors, 9/15/15)

Our Vision

Lakes Region Mental Health Center is the community leader providing quality,
accessible and integrated mental and physical health services, delivered with dedication
and compassion.

(Revised & Approved by the Board of Directors, 9/15/15)

Our Values

RESPECT
We conduct our business and provide services with

respect and professionalism.

ADVOCACY

We advocate for those we serve through enhanced
collaborations, community relations and political
action.

INTEGRITY
We work with integrity and transparency, setting a
moral compass for the agency.

STEWARDSHIP
We are effective stewards of our resources for our

clients and our agency's health.

EXCELLENCE
We are committed to excellence in all programming
and services.
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The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2020
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Kitteil Branagan B Sargent
Ceriiftcd Public Accoiiniattls

Vermont License * 167

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors

of The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.
(a nonprofit organization) which comprise of the statement of financial position as of June 30. 2020, and the
related statement of activities and changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of Internal control relevant to the preparation and .fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based ori our audit, We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

154 North Main Street, St. Albans. Vermont 05478 . I P 802.524.9531 | 800.499.9531 | F 802.624.9533

vwvw.kb3cpa.com
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To the Board of Directors

of The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.
Page 2

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc. as of June 30. 2020, and the changes in Its net
assets and Its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The
Analysis of Accounts Receivables, the Analysis of BBH Revenues. Receipts & Receivables and schedules
of functional public support, revenues and expenses on pages 13-16 are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures
In accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the Information is fairly stated in all material respects In relation to the financial statements as a whole.

St. Albans, Vermont
September 30, 2020



DocuSign Envelope ID; 43257A6B-B337-4A4C-9C6D-9BFD8AAA69F1
The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30, 2020

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash

Investments

Accounts receivable (net of $1,676,000 allowance)

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

$ 4,270,465

1,730,350

980,344

56,457

7,037,616

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - NET 5,695,451

TOTAL ASSETS $12,733,067

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Current portion long-term debt

Accrued payroll and related

Deferred income

Accrued vacation

Accrued expenses

$  151,612

869,890

721,472

336,652

394,151

62,791

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,536,568

LONG-TERM DEBT, less current portion

Notes and Bonds Payable

Less: unamortized debt issuance costs

5,255,763

(86,992)

TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 5,168,771

TOTAL LIABILITIES 7,705,339

NET ASSETS

Net assets without donor restrictions 5,027,728

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $12,733,067

See Notes to Financial Statements
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The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For the Year Ended June 30. 2020

PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUES

Public support -

Federal

State of New Hampshire - BBH

Other public support

Total Public Support

Net Assets

without Donor

Restrictions

375,343

710,479

294.591

1,380,413

Revenues -

Program service fees

Rental income

Other revenue

Total Revenues

TOTAL PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUES

12,694,063

85,938

492,378

13,272,379

14,652,792

EXPENSES

BBH funded program services -

Children Services

Multi-service

ACT

Emergency Services

Housing Services

Non-Eligible

Non-BBH funded program services

TOTAL EXPENSES

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS FROM OPERATIONS

2,854,685

6,216,852

1,243,654

1,157,090

876,871

481,365

1,338,732

14,169,249

483,543

OTHER INCOME

Gain on sale of fixed asset

Investment Income

TOTAL OTHER INCOME

212,252

56,651

268,903

TOTAL INCREASE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, beginning

NET ASSETS, ending

752,446

4.275,282

£  5.027.728

See Notes to Financial Statements.

2



DocuSign Envelope ID: 43257A6B-B337-4A4C-9C6D-9BFD8AAA69F1

The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended June 30. 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Increase in net assets $ 752,446

Adjustments to reconcile to net cash

provided by operations:

Depreciation and Amortization 302,827
Gain on sale of asset (212,252)

Unrealized loss on investments 56,102

(Increase) decrease in:

Accounts receivable 264,679

Prepaid expenses 87,127

Increase (decrease) in:

Accounts payable & accrued liabilities 134,169
Deferred income 236,617

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1.621,715

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from sale of assets 290,940

Purchases of property and equipment (201,616)
Net investment activity (110,252)

NET CASH (USED) BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES (20.928)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issuance of debt - 1,687,500

Principal payments on long-term debt (103,988)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES 1.583,512

NET INCREASE IN CASH 3,184,299

CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,086.166

CASH AT END OF YEAR $ 4.270,465

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE

Cash Payments for Interest $ 126,950

Fixed Assets Acquired through Acquisition of Long-Term Debt $ 249,537

See Notes to Financial Statements
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The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2020

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Oraanization

The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc. (the Center) is a not-for-profit corporation,
organized under New Hampshire law to provide services in the areas of mental health, and
related non-mental health programs: it is exempt from income taxes under Section 501 (c)(3)
of the Internal Revenue Code. In addition, the Center qualifies for the charitable contribution
deduction under Section 170 (b)(1)(a) and has been classified as an organization that is not
a private foundation under Section 509(a)(2).

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting

principles require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Depreciation

The cost of property, equipment and leasehold improvements is depreciated over the
estimated useful life of the assets using the straight line method. Estimated useful lives range
from 3 to 40 years.

State Grants

The Center receives a number of grants from and has entered into various contracts with the
State of New Hampshire related to the delivery of mental health sen/ices.

Vacation Pav and Frinae Benefits

Vacation pay is accrued and charged to the programs when earned by the employee. Fringe
benefits are allocated to the appropriate program expense based on the percentage of actual
time spent on the programs.

Revenue

Revenue from federal, state and other sources is recognized in the period earned.

Client Service Revenue

The Center recognizes client service revenue relating to services rendered to clients that
have third-party payer coverage and are self-pay. The Center receives reimbursement from
Medicare, Medicaid and Insurance Companies at defined rates for services to clients
covered by such third-party payer programs. The difference between the established billing
rates and the actual rate of reimbursement is recorded as allowances when received. For

services rendered to uninsured clients (i.e., self-pay clients), revenue is recognized on the
basis of standard or negotiated discounted rates. At the time services are rendered to self-
pay clients, a provision for bad debts is recorded based on experience and the effects of
newly identified circumstances and trends in pay rates. Client service revenue (net of
contractual allowances and discounts but before taking account of the provision for bad
debts) recognized during the year ended June 30, 2020 totaled $11,519,963, of which
$11,370,140 was revenue from third-party payers and $149,823 was revenue from self-pay
clients.
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The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2020

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Third Party Contractual Arrangements

A significant portion of patient revenue is derived from services to patients insured by third-
party payors. The center receives reimbursement from Medicare, Medicaid, Blue Cross, and
other third-party insurers at defined rates for services rendered to patients covered by these
programs. The difference between the established billing rates and the actual rate of
reimbursement is recorded as allowances when recorded. A provision for estimated
contractual allowances is provided on outstanding patient receivables at the balance sheet
date.

Basis for Presentation

The financial statements of the Center have been prepared on the accrual basis in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
The financial statements are presented in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 958 dated August, 2016, and the
provisions of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AlCPA) "Audit and
Accounting Guide for Not-for-Profit Orgnizations" (the "Guide"). (ASC) 958-205 was effective
January 1, 2018.

Under the provisions of the Guide, net assets and revenues and gains and losses are
classified based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, the
net asset of the Center and changes therein are classified as follows:

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor
Imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary
objectives of the Center. The Center's board may designate assets without
restrictions for specific operational purposes from time to time.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by
donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those
restrictions will be met by actions of the Center or by the passage of time. Other
donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds
be maintained in perpetuity.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded based on the amount billed for services provided, net of
respective allowances.

Policv for Evaluating Coliectabilitv of Accounts Receivable

In evaluating the collectability of accounts receivable, the Center analyzes past results and
identifies trends for each major payer source of revenue for the purpose of estimating the
appropriate amounts of the allowance for doubtful accounts. Data in each major payer
source is regularly reviewed to evaluate the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts.
Specifically, for receivables relating to services provided to clients having third-party
coverage, an allowance for doubtful accounts and a corresponding provision for bad debts
are established for amounts outstanding for an extended period of time and for third-party
payers experiencing financial difficulties; for receivables relating to self-pay clients, a
provision for bad debts is made in the period services are rendered based on experience
indicating the Inability or unwillingness of clients to pay amounts for which they are financially
responsible.
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The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2020

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Based on management's assessment, the Center provides for estimated uncollectible
amounts through a charge to earnings and a credit to a valuation allowance. Balances that
remain outstanding after the Center has used reasonable collection efforts are written off
through a change to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable.

The allowance for doubtful accounts was $1,676,000 and $906,500 for the years ended June
30, 2020 and 2019. Total patient accounts receivable increased to $2,135,814 as of June
30, 2020 from $1,871,450 at June 30, 2019. As a result of changes to payer mix present at
year end the allowance as a percentage of total accounts receivable increased from 48% to
78% of total patient accounts receivable.

Advertisinc

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Total costs were $92,537 at June 30, 2020 and
consisted of $56,863 for recruitment and $35,674 for agency advertising.

NOTE 2 CLIENT SERVICE REVENUES FROM THIRD PARTY PAYORS

The Center has agreements with third-party payers that provide payments to the Center at
established rates. These payments include:

New Hampshire and Manaoed Medicaid

The Center is reimbursed for services from the State of New Hampshire and Managed
Care Organizations (MCOs) for services rendered to Medicaid clients. Payments for
these services are received in the form of monthly capitation amounts that are
predetermined in a contractual agreement with the MCOs.

Approximately 81% of program service fees is from participation in the State and Managed
Care Organization sponsored Medicaid programs for the year ended June 30, 2020. Laws
and regulations governing the Medicaid programs are complex and subject to interpretation
and change. As a result, it is reasonably possible that recorded estimates could change
materially in the near term.

As part of the contractual arrangement with the MCOs, the Center is required to provide a
specific amount of services under an arrangement referred to as a Maintenance of Effort
(MOE). Under the MOE, if levels of service are not met the Center may be subject to
repayment of a portion of the revenue received. The MOE calculation is subject to
interpretation and a source of continued debate and negotiations with MCOs. This MOE
calculation may result in a liability that would require a payback to the MCOs. Additionally,
please refer to Note 14 regarding MOE being waived for the entire year ended June 30,
2020.
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The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2020

NOTE 3 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The Center elects to capitalize all purchases with a useful life of greater than one year and a
cost of $2,000 or more. Property and equipment, at cost, consists of the following:

Land, buildings and improvements

Buildings and improvements

Computer equipment

Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Vehicles

Artwork

Construction in progress

Accumulated depreciation

$ 107,600

5,911,379

1,097,638

657,701

139,738

26,925

380,755

8,321,736

(2,626,285)

NET BOOK VALUE ^ 5.695.451

NOTE 4 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - TRADE

Due from clients

Receivable from insurance companies

Medicaid receivables

Medicare receivables

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Total Receivable - Trade

155,294

695,944

955,885

328,691

2,135,814

(1,676,000)

459,814

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - OTHER

Bridge Subsidy

HUD

State of New Hampshire - Surge Center

LTCS

BBH - Bureau of Behavioral Health

Lakes Region Healthcare

MCO Directed Payments
Other Grants and Contracts

Total Receivable - Other

11,482

8,103

140,500

85,500

23,130

56,234

125,224

70,357

520,530

TOTAL ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE $  980,344
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The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2020

NOTE 5 LINE OF CREDIT

As of June 30, 2020, the Center had available a line of credit with an upper limit of
$1,000,000 with a local area bank. At that date, $-0- had been borrowed against the line of
credit. These funds are available at a variable rate of interest, with a floor no less than 4.0%
per annum, currently 5.50%. The availability under this line will be limited to 70% of the
current market value of the Vanguard Funds which have been pledged to the local area
bank. This line of credit expires June 9, 2021.

NOTE 6 COMMITMENTS

The corporation leases real estate and equipment under various operating leases. Minimum
future rental payments under non cancelable operating leases as of June 30, 2020 for each
of the next four years and in the aggregate are:

June 30.

2021

2022

2023

2024

Amount

64,329

41,127

41,127

41,127

Total rent expense for the year ended June 30, 2020, including rent expense for leases with
a remaining term of one year or less was $132,727.

NOTE 7 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

The Center has the option to make contributions to a defined contribution 403(b) plan on
behalf of its employees. This program covers substantially all full-time employees. During the
year ended June 30, 2020 the total contributions into the plan were $116,449. Total
administrative fees paid into the plan for the year ended June 30, 2020 were $13,679.

NOTE 8 LONG-TERM DEBT

As of June 30, 2020, long-term debt consisted of the following:

2.97% bond payable - Meredith Village Savings Bank due in monthly

installments of $19,288 (principal and interest) beginning in

June 2019. Secured by building through June, 2047. $4,188,616

4.45% note payable - Meredith Village Savings Bank. Interest only

July 2020 - December 2020 then installments of $993 (principal a

and interest). Secured by building through November, 2030. 96,000
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The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2020

NOTE 8 LONG-TERM DEBT {continued)

4.45% construction loan - Meredith Village Savings Bank. Interest only

July 2020 - December 2020 then installments of $3,247 (principal a
and interest). As of June 30, 2020 there is $390,463 remaining to
be drawn on this note for a total available of $544,000. Secured by

building through November, 2040. 153,537

1.0% PPP loan payable - Meredith Village Savings Bank. Interest
accrued April 2020 - November 2020 then monthly installments of

$94,494 (principal and interest). Due April, 2022.

Less: Current Portion

1,687,500

6,125,653

(869,890)

Total long-term debt

Less: Unamortized debt issuance costs

5,255,763

(86,992)

Total Long-Term Debt net with Related Costs $5,168,771

Expected maturities for the next five years are as follows:

Year Ending

June 30,

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025

Thereafter

$  869,890

1,078,142^
142,053

146,742

151,591

3,737,235

$ 6,125,653

NOTE 9 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Center receives money under various State and Federal grants. Under the terms of
these grants, the Center is required to use the money within the grant period for purposes
specified in the grant proposal and is subject to compliance reviews and audits by the grantor
agencies. It is the opinion of management that any liability, resulting from future grantor
agency audits of completed grant contracts, would not be material in relation to the overall
financial statements.
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The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2020

NOTE 10 INVESTMENTS

Investments consist of amounts invested in various Vanguard Equity and Bond Funds. At
June 30. 2020, the status of these funds were as follows;

Unrealized

Cost Market

Large Blend $  422,561 $  227,126 $ 649,687

Health 299.533 57,198 356,731

Large Growth 171,958 2,692 174,650

Mid-Cap Value 195,186 128,009 323,195

Short-Term Bond 226,503 (416) 226,087

$ 1,315.741 $ 414.609 $ 1,730,350

The related unrealized gain (losses) have been included in the investment income line on the
accompanying statement of activities. Investment income is as follows:

Interest and Dividends

Realized Gains

Unrealized Losses

$ 31,631

81,122

(56,102)

$  56,651

NOTE 11 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Professional accounting standards require a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1
measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements). The
three levels of the fair value hierarchy under these professional accounting standards are
described below:

Basis of Fair Value Measurement

Level 1 Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement
date for identical, unrestricted assets or liabilities.

Level 2 Quoted prices in markets that are not considered to be active or financial
instruments for which all significant inputs are observable, either directly or
indirectly.

Level 3 Prices or valuations that require inputs that are both significant to the fair value
measurement and unobservable.

10
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The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2020

NOTE 11 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

A financial instrument's level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of
any input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

All investments are categorized as Level 1 and recorded at fair value, as of June 30, 2020.
As required by professional accounting standards, investment assets are classified in their
entirety based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

NOTE 12 CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

At June 30, 2020, the carrying amount of the cash deposits is $4,270,465 and the bank
balance totaled $4,293,673. Of the bank balance, $379,728 was Insured by Federal Deposit
Insurance and $3,913,945 was offset by debt.

The Center grants credit without collateral to its clients, most of who are area residents and
are insured under third-party payor agreements. The mix of receivables due from clients and
third-party payers at June 30, 2020 is as follows:

Due from clients

Insurance companies

Medicaid

Medicare

7 %

33

45

15

100 %

NOTE 13 LIQUIDITY

The following reflects the Center's financial assets available within one year of June 30, 2020
for general expenditures:

Cash

Investments

Accounts receivable

$ 4,270,465

1,730,350

980,344

$ 6,981,159

Restricted deposits and reserves are restricted for specific purposes and .therefore not
available for general expenditures.

As part of the Center's liquidity management, it has a policy to structure its financial assets
available as its general expenditures, liabilities and other obligations come due.

11
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The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2020

NOTE 14 RISKS & UNCERTAINTIES

As a result of the spread of the COVID-19 Coronavirus, economic uncertainties have arisen
which are likely to negatively impact net income. Other financial impact could occur though
such potential impact and the duration cannot be reasonably estimated at this time. Possible
effects may Include, but are not limited to, disruption to the Center's customers and revenue,
absenteeism in the Center's labor workforce, unavailability of products and supplies used in
operations, and decline in value of assets held by the Center, including receivables and
property and equipment.

Due to these economic uncertainties the Center applied for and received Federal support
and aid funding through the Paycheck Protection Program (aka PPP) and the Provider Relief
Fund, which was implemented as part of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security
Act (CARES Act). These proceeds were used to cover payroll costs, certain interest
payments, rent, and utility costs. These funds were one-off unanticipated payments and any
future relief is uncertain.

On April 1, 2020, the Center successfully petitioned all three managed care organizations to
waive the Maintenance of Effort (MOE) provisions in each of the respective provider service
agreements. The waiver period is effective only for the period of July 1, 2019 through June
30, 2020, and is thereafter reinstated. An extension to waive the MOE requirements beyond
this effective period is also uncertain at this time.

NOTE 15 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In accordance with professional accounting standards, the Center has evaluated subsequent
events through September 30, 2020 which is the date the financial statement was available
to be issued. All events requiring recognition as of June 30, 2020, have been incorporated
into the financial statements herein.

12
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The Lakes Region Mental Health Center. Inc.
ANALYSIS OF ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Accounts

Receivable

Beginning
of Year Gross Fees

Contractual

Allowances

and Other

Discounts

Given

Cash

Receipts

Accounts

Receivable

End

of Year

CLIENT FEES $  140,436 $  1,484,529 $  (1,334,706) JE  (134,965) ;$  155,294

BLUE CROSS / BLUE SHIELD 158,683 718,911 (472,092) (128,166) 277,336

MEDICAID 990,582 15.284,197 (4,940,903) (10,377,991) 955,885

MEDICARE 245,808 1,401,219 (903,131) (415,205) 328,691

OTHER INSURANCE 335,941 1,022,650 (740,711) (199,272) 418,608

ALLOWANCE FOR

DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS (906,500) (1,676,000)

TOTAL $  964,950 $  19,911,506 $  (8,391,543) JE (11,255,599) ;$  459,814

13
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The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.

ANALYSIS OF BBH REVENUES. RECEIPTS AND RECEIVABLES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Receivable

(Deferred

Income)

From

BBH.

Beginning
of Year

BBH

Revenues

Per Audited

Financial

Statements

Receipts
for Year

Receivable

(Deferred

Income)

From

BBH

End of Year

CONTRACT YEAR. June 30. 2020 $  81,102 $ 392.488 $ (450.460) $ 23,130

Analysis of Receipts

Date of Receipt
Deposit Date Amount

07/25/19 $  80,898

07/31/19 8,478

09/04/19 310

09/06/19 57,050

09/10/19 7,848

09/23/19 31,917

09/26/19 7,848

10/02/19 12,826

10/11/19 148

10/31/19 73,989.

11/01/19 923

11/05/19 26,920

11/07/19 7,848

11/29/19 7,562

12/10/19 61,338

12/24/19 7,511

01/16/20 47,939

01/09/00 -  10,279-

01/24/20 9,441

01/28/20 228

01/29/20 7,552

02/03/20 4,029

02/14/20 12,604

02/26/20 7,848

03/02/20 10,824

03/04/20 7,559

03/19/20 7,848

03/25/20 10,016

04/01/20 4,739

04/03/20 5,000

04/20/20 11,656

04/30/30 8,043

05/04/20 15,082

05/07/20 500

05/21/20 7,538

05/28/20 16.534

06/15/20 5,761

06/22/20 7,848

06/25/20 9,032

06/29/20 7,848

Less: Federal Monies (178,702)

$  450.460
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The Lakes Region Mental Health Center, Inc.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Housinq Services Non BBH

Total Total Multi Emergency Apts, S.L. Apts. S.L. Non Funded

Aqencv Admin. Programs Children -Service ACT Services Summer McGrath Eligible Programs

Program Service Fees:

Net Client Fee S  149,823 $  - ;5  149,823 $  33,548 S  57,703 5;  22,240 $  (9,003) $ $ $  45,360 $  (25)

Blue Cross/Blue Shield 246,819 246,819 96,728 74,780 2,449 27,549
-

-
45,313

-

Medicaid 10,343,294 . 10,343,294 3,155,219 6,170,340 629,302 301,842 - -
86,591 -

Medicare 498,088 - 498,088 - 444,131 24,710 (1.872) - -
31,119 -

Other Insurance 281,939 - 281,939 86,081 109,757 8,481 7,172 - -

70,448 -

Program Sales:

Service 1,174,100 - 1,174,100 71,509 93,685 -
8,855 - -

5,421 994,630

Public Support - Other:

United Way 525 525 - - -
- - -

-
-

-

Local/County Government 140,970 - 140,970 - - -
117,970 - -

23,000 -

Donadons/Contributions 51,458 49,470 1,988 - 788 - - 100 100
-

1,000

Other Public Support 101,638 69,104 32,534 6,237 5,547 250 225 50 75 20,075 75

Federal Funding:

HUD Grant 142,876 - 142,876 - - - -
43,041 99,835 - -

Other Federal Grants 232,467 53,851 178,616 - - - - - -
-

178,616

Rental Income 85,938 1,578 84,360 1,578 1,916 282 -
36,513 43,789 -

282

DBH & DS:

Community Mental Health 710,331 317,991 392,340 5,294 67,876 225,000 94,170 - - -

-

DCYF 148 - 148 148 • -
- -

- -
-

Interest Income 408 408 - - - - - - - - -

Other Revenues 491,970 255,860 236,110 4,194 52,531 85 58 2,761 8,307 405 167,769

14,652,792 748.787 13,904,005 3,460,536 7,079,054 912,799 546,966 82,465 152,106 327,732 1,342,347

Administration - (748,787) 748,787 186,365 381,236 49,158 29,456 4,441 8,191 17,649 72,291

TOTAL PUBLIC SUPPORT AND

REVENUES $ 14,652,792 $ $ 14,652,792 $ 3,646,901 $ 7,460,290 5)  961,957 $  576,422 $  86,906 $  160,297 $  345,381 $ 1,414,638
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The Lakes Region Mental Health Center. Inc.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For the Year Ended June 30. 2020

Housing Setvices

Total

Agency

Total

Administration Programs Chidren Muttl-Sefvice ACT

Emergerx:y

Services

Apts. S.L.
Summer

Apts. S.L.
McGrath Non-Eligible

Non BBH

Furxled

Programs

Salary artd wages $ 8.947.194 $  713,597 $ 8.233,597 S 1,574.505 $ 3.622.143 $  791.478 $ 746.757 $ 173,489 $ 196,451 S 308,877 $  819,897

Employee benefits 1.883,183 125,387 1,757,796 405.044 884,543 127.202 130,730 43.584 43.532 60,655 62.506

Payroll Taxes 643.133 64.941 578,192 119.250 253,350 52,980 54,880 12.594 14.335 22,795 48.008

Sut>slltute Staff 168,153 126 168.027 502 69.739 18.188 22.617 42 63 63 56.813

PROFESSIONAL FEES AND CONSULTANTS:

Accounting/audit fees 65,617 65.617 - • - - • - -
- -

Legal lees 25,335 25.335 - - • - - • - - •

Other professiortal fees 300,180 79.782 220.398 8,617 14,616 3.256 2.931 70,262 70,160 977 49.579

Staff Devel. & Tralnlrtg:

Journals & publications 1.909 118 1,791 346 1,132 98 81 19 29 35 51

In-Service training 4.574 2.509 2,065 485 1.021 186 167 38 56 56 56

Conferer>ces & conventkxts 55.776 10.894 44,882 6,471' 29.853 2.112 2,234 928 993 607 1,684

Other staff development 32.163 3.242 28,921 3,315 18.952 (168) 4,721 274 312 846 669

Occupancy costs:

Rent 90.408 3.925 86,483 35,706 37.330 812 722 180 271 3,391 8,071

Mortgage (Interest) 126.857 27,617 99,240 38,593 46.863 6.892
- - • -

6,892

Heating CostS 27.217 2.807 24,410 4,974 5.728 484 192 6,491 5.186 341 1,014

Other UtSities 72.355 10,463 61,892 14.732 16.616 1,570 - 11,793 13.678 552 2,951

Maintertance & repairs 171.745 38,018 133.727 43.441 50.616 7,088 1,024 13.008 10.020 999 7,531

Taxes 7,108 7,108 - - - . - - • - -

Cortsumable Supplies:

Office 29.770 7,063 22,707 7.046 9,573 1,521 1,173 978 312 852 1.252

Buiding/household 35.152 14,846 20,306 4.359 7,139 1,449 1,180 699 4.413 465 602

Medical 17.689 5,814 11,875 268 2,387 .  101 90 22 33 33 8,941

Other 146.645 8,579 138,066 35.186 61,324 13,237 11.786 2.904 4.356 4.357 4.916

DepreciatiorwEquipment 96.093 3,595 92,498 21.369 41.093 9,782 9.220 2.305 3.292 3.126 2.311

DepreciatiorvBuildit>g 206.734 49,428 157,306 45.533 55.194 8,051 • 13.690 26.641 42 8.155

Equipment rental 32.736 6,377 26.359 8.659 12.145 2,144 1.014 254 380 380 1.383

Equipment maintenance 18.408 1,079 17.329 4.262 7,176 1,496 1.860 318 603 1.057 557

Advertising 92,537 2,851 89.686 11.537 20,104 4.287 3.811 952 1.428 1.438 46.129

Printir^g 1,972 1.902 70 - 70 • - • - -

Telephone/communications 273.070 35,923 237,147 71.527 90.970 12.050 25.171 10.966 2,400 10.899 13.164

Postage/shipping 14.529 1,112 13.417 3.642 5.974 1.166 1.037 259 389 438 512

Transportation:

Staff 194,483 2.810 191,673 41,927 107.327 33.425 1.630 1.483 1,575 3.234 1.072

Clients 13,111 - 13.111 • 13,111 - • - - • •

Assist to Irvtividuals:

Client services 26.243 . 26.243 10,281 14,105 82 •
649 1.126

- -

Insurarrce:

Malpractice/bonding 66,118 16.654 49,464 12,629 22,100 4.736 4,210 1,052 1.579 1,579 1,579

Vehicles 5.271 • 5,271 355 4.507 136 123 27 41 41 41

Comp. Property/liabilty 34.767 9.755 25,012 7,086 10.012 1.717 1,164 1,587 1.678 623 1,145

Membership Dues 36,807 1,088 35,719 30 53 11 10 3 4 4 35.604

Other Expenditures 204,207 184.247 19,960 3.830 6,666 1,390 1.236 3.550 2.165 468 655

14,169.249 1,534.609 12.634,640 2.545,507 5,543.532 1.108,959 1.031,771 374.400 407.501 429,230 1.193,740

Admin. Allocation . (1.534,609) 1,534,609 309,178 673.320 134,695 125,319 45.475 49.495 52.135 144,992

TOTAL PROGRAM EXPENSES $ 14.169.249 $ $ 14,169,249 S 2.854,685 $ 6.216,852 S 1.243.654 S 1.157,090 S 419,875 $ 456.996 $ 481.365 S 1.338.732

16
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LAKES REGION MENTAL HEALTH CENTER, INC.

Board of Directors Listing
February, 2021

President Gail Mears

Vice President Peter Minkow

Co-Treasurer Matthew Soza

Co-Treasurer Marsha Bourdon

Secretary Laura LeMien

Member at Large William Bolton

Member at Large Marlin Collingwood

Member at Large Edward McFarland

Member at Large Seifu Ragassa

Member at Large Kristin Snow

Member at Large James Stapp

Member at Large Susan Steams

Member at Large Rev. Judith Wright
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Alison K. O'Neltl, MS, LCMHC

State of New Hampshire Licensed Clinical Mental Health Counselor, License #795

Professional Experience:

Lakes Region Mental Health Services, Laconia NH
Clinical Coordinator, Neurocognitive Program, September 2015 to Current
•  Oversee an interdisciplinary team that provides services to patients admitted to the Neurocognitive program, which

provides services to patients with a mental health diagnosis and a developmental or intellectual disability, or a
traumatic brain injury, or cognitive decline. Responsible for recruiting new staff/team members, to include screening
candidates, participating in interview sessions and assisting in the hiring decision.

•  Provide regular supervision with a clinical and administrative focus for bachelor and master level staff. Provide
supervision for Master's level interns and supervision for therapists working towards their licensure in LCMHC.

•  Participate in several agency committees such as; Training Committee, Employee Committee, Documentation Ad Hoc
Committee. Participate and collaborate with outside agencies, such as; Lakes Region Community Services, START
(including Committee, training) NH Elders Meeting. .

•  Respond to crisis situations as needed. Complete adult assessments. Provide individual and group therapy.
Participate In DBT Consult Group. Facilitate Therapist Consult Group.

•  Create and facilitate trainings on our electronic medical record (Essentia) and Dialectical Behavioral Therapy.
• Working collaboratively to create a Peer Support Program. Provide group supervision for Peer Support Specialist.

New England College, Henniker NH
Adjunct Professor, Masters Level Clinical Mental Health Program, August 2016 to current
•  Clinical Counseling Theories
•  Clinical Counseling Techniques

Alison K. O'Neill, MS, LCMHC, PLLC, Private Practice, Concord, NH ^
Licensed Clinical Mental Health Counselor, January 2013 to October 2015
• Worked with children, adolescents, adults, parents, families, and couples, providing individual, couples, and family

therapy, writing psychosocial assessments, treatment plans, and progress notes on all clients.
•  Responsible for all aspects of the business management i.e. credentialing, insurance contracting and. invoicing,

accounts payable, accounts receivable, collections, referrals and any other communications. Responsibilities noted
below.

Northbridge Counseling, Bedford and Concord, NH
Licensed Clinical Mental Health Counselor, June 2012 to March 2013

• Worked with children, adolescents, and adults, providing individual, couples, and family therapy, as well as seeing
clients through their employer EAP using Solution Focused Therapy, writing psychosocial assessments, treatment
plans and progress notes on all clients.

RIverbend Community Mental Health Center, Children's Intervention Program, Concord, NH
Child and Family Therapist and Family Support Therapist, January 2007 to June 2012
•  For the first 6 months this was an intern position, I was the first master's level intern in the children's program,

providing therapy to children and families.
•  Provided clinical services to children ages 4 to 18, providing individual, family and group therapy, including DBT

Adolescent group, TF-CBT and Helping the Non-Compliant Child.
•  Provided school based therapy, collaborated with school staff.

Therapeutic approaches utilized: Cognitive Behavioral Therapy, Dialectical Behavioral Therapy. Strength Based
Therapy, Solution Focused Therapy, Motivational Interviewing, Play Therapy, and Family Systems Therapy.

Education:

Springfield College of Human Services, St. Johnsbury, VT Springfield College of Human Services. Manchester, NH
Master of Science in Mental Health Counseling, 2007 Bachelor of Science in Human Services, 2005
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KORl CONROY

H EFLER

PROFESSIONAL SUMMARY

Hardworking ond relioble. focused on going obove and beyond to support team and serve customers. Trained in

supporting and offering top-nofcfr counseling abilities. Motivated to continue to leorn and grow as a Mentoi

Healtti professional.

SKILLS

• Residential support • Account management support

• Team support • Direct operations

• Generate reports • Motivation

• Problem-solving • Verbal communication

EXPERIENCE

Housing Manager. Lakes Region Mental Health Center. Feb 2021 - Current, Laconia, NH

• Researctied and analyzed member needs to determine program goals, offerings, and areas in need of

improvement.

• Explained participant eligibility, program requirements, and program benefits to potential clients.

•  Implemented improved training programs for staff and volunteers.

• Enforced residential rules to protect patients and maintain readiness for different types of emergencies.

• Mointained and managed residents" medication for short- and long-term treatment requirements.

Resldentlol Therapeutic Support Specialist, Lakes Region Mental Health Center. Jan 2020 • Feb 2021. Laconia, NH

• Helped clients follow treatment plans by setting up appointments, arranging transportation, and offering

personalized support.

• Counseled patients alone and with groups to ossist through difficult times and improve coping with mental

health, medical, or substance abuse issues.

• Coordinated timely meal preparation, cleaning, and other housekeeping requirements.

• Enforced residential rules to protect patients and maintain readiness for different types of emergencies.

• Assisted clients with planning budgets, meeting daily objectives and attending important appointments.

• Worked with clients to identify their specific issues potential support options.

Support Staff. Lakes Region Mental Health Center. Jul 2016 • Jan 2020. Laconia. NH

• Handled administrative functions, including filing, typing, copying, and faxing.

• Answered phones, greeted visitors, and answered basic visitor questions.

• Operated office machinery, including photocopiers, scanners, and telephone systems.

• Conducted research, assembled ond anolyzed doto, and submitted reports ond documents.
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EDUCATION

High School Diploma Jun 201 1

Inter'Lakes High School • Meredith, NH

Currently oltending'

Lokes Region Community College • Loconio, NH
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CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Alison O'Neill Director, Long Terni Services $69,000 0% 0%

ICori Conroy Hefler Housing Facilitator $44,500 0% 0%
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

/)/ra/ON OF ECONOMIC A HOUSING STABILITY

129PLEASANTSTREET.CONCORD.NH 03301
603-271-9474 I400-&S2.334S ExL 9474

F«x: 603-271-4230 TOD Acco*: 1-800-735.2964 wwwJbhi.Dh.fO*

March 25. 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to amend an existing Sole Source contract with The Lakes Region Mental
Health Center, Inc. {VC#154480 - B001). Laconia. NH for to provide a Permanent Housing
Program to individuals experiencing homelessness through the Federal Continuum of Care
Program by increasing the price limitation by $1,202 from $41,048 to $42,250 with no change to
the contract completion date of January 31.2021 effective upon Governor and Council approval.
The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on January 22. 2020, item #13.
100% Federal Funds.

Funds are available in the following account for Slate Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021, with
the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-42.423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEFT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVC, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING- SHELTER PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts

for Prog Svc
42305808 $17,103 $1,202 $18,305

2021 102-500731
Contracts

for Prog Svc
42305808 $23,945 $0 $23,945

Total $41,048 $1,202 $42,250

EXPLANATION

Annually, the US Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) oversees a
Continuum of Care Program competitive application process. As part of this process, the
Department is required to provide HUD with each potential vendor, and HUD evaluates vendor
applications. Based on that evaluation process. HUD directs the Department to provide grant
awards and the specific amounts to vendors. As previously stated, the original contract was
approved by Governor and Council on January 22. 2020, Item #13.
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His ExceDency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
8r>d the Horwrable Council

Page 2 of 2

The purpose of this request is to provide additional funds, made available by the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development, for the continued delivery of a Permanent
Housing Program that provides permanent housing and supportive services, as well as
associated administrative services, to individuals facing homelessness to increase the ability of
participants to live more independently.

The vendor provides permanent housing and supportive services targeted to serve a
minimum of seven (7) individuals who are experiencing homelessness. at any given time, from
February 1. 2020 through January 31. 2021.

The Department ensures contract compliance and vendor performance In the following
ways:

(1) Annual compliance reviews are performed and include the collection of data relating
to compliance with administrative rules and contractual agreements.

(2) Statistical reports are submitted by the vendor on a semi-annual basis Nwhich include
various demographic information and income arKj expense reports, including match
dollars.

(3) The vendor is required to maintain tln>ely and accurate data entry in the New
Hampshire Homeless Management Information System, which is the primary reporting
toot for outcomes and activities of shelter and housing programs funded through these
contracts.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1. Subsection 2.1. of the original contract, the parties have the
option to extend the agreement for up to one (1) additional year, contingent upon satisfactory
delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council
approval. The Department is not exercising its option to renew at this time.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request. Permanent Housing and
supportive services for homeless individuals may not be available in their communities, and there
may be an increase in demand for services placed upon the region's local welfare authorities.
Lack of services may also cause individuals to become homeless.

Area served: Laconia

Source of Funds: CFDA# 14.667/ FAIN# NH0002L1T001810

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shiblnette

Commissioner

Tht tkpoTimtnl of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and familiea
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieit health and independence.
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New Kampshlro Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, Summer Street Permanent Housing

State of New Hampehire
Department of Heatth and Human Services

Amendment 01 to the Continuum of Care. Summer Street Permanent Houalng

TMa fAinendment to the Ccfitlnuum Of Care. Summer Street Permanent HooBinflcontrad(haie0tf!tar
refaned to as'Amervfment til") to by and between the Stata (0 New Hampshire. Department or Heatih
and Human Services (hereinafter referred toes the "Btstef or •DepartmenQsnd "The Lakes Region Mental
HeaMh Center, Inc.. (heretoafler retorred to as "the ContTadDOi e nonprofli !*dth a place efbushess 3140
Beacon Street East, Laoonia, NH. 03240.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreainefd (the "Contract^ approved by the Oovemor and Executive Councfi
on danuary 22,2020. (ttam 013), the Contractor agreed to perform certain sendees based upon the terms
tf)d condMorts aped^ tn the Contract artd In conddereflon of coftah sums epedftod: and

WHBIEAS, pursuard to Form P-37. Oenersl Provisions. Psresraph 18, end Exhtoit C-1. Peregraph 2.1.,
the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the partias artd approval ftom the Oovemor and
ExBCUthm Coundl: end

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreenrent, increase the price Qmttstlon, or modify
the scope of servloes to support oontlRued delivery of toese servloes; end
NOW THEREFORE. In coftsldsTBlIon of the foregoing end the mutual covenants and conditions contained
In the CoRtrect and set forth herein, the pantos hereto egree to amend 8s followK

1. Form P-37. General Provbtons.Bkxikl .8. Prioe Limitation, to read:

842,260.

2. Exhibit B, Methods and CondHtons Precedent to PBymsnt, Section VPemnanenlHoustog Program
Funding, Subsection li„tore8d:
1.2. This Agreernem is funded wBh federal funds made avaBsble uruter the Catalog of Federal

Domestic Asslstanoe (CFDA), as follows:

1.2.1. Federal Rmds: 100%

1.2JZ. Program Name: Continuum of Cere Program

1.2.3. Award Date: 01/28/2019

1X4. Awarding Agency: US Department of Houstog end Urban Development

i2£. CFDA# 14,267

1X8. FAIN0: MH0002L1TO0J»rr ie\0-r<f ̂ Isafxo
3 Exhibtt B, Mflthoda and CorufiUons Precedent to Payment Section 3. Project Costs: Payment

Schedule. Review by the State. Subsection 3.4 Psyment of Project Costs, Paragraph 34.1. to
read:

3.4.1 The State agrees to provide payment on a cost reimburaement basis tor actuat eligible
ejvendftures (nouned In the fidfObnerd of this agjeeflmd. errd ahaO be In acoordance
wtih tha eppro^ Dne Bems as spedfiDd In Erdttott B>1 Budget-Amendment 01. and
es defined by HUD under the provtolons of PubOc l,aw 102-860 and other appiicabto
regulattona, subject to the avaBablllfy of aufflctont flinda.

4. MixfiiyExhlbftB-l Budget by raptacing In tta entirety vi4th Exhibit B-1Bu(^-Amendmen1#1,
which is ettached heretD and (ncorpofated by reference herein.

Tho Ldcee Boetoi MMito HoflSh Cwtw, he

SS-2a2OeHS-044'ERM<V.12-AO1

I

/VTwndmtnl 01 Contractc* Inttsh -•Vlj
PagvlofS Det»_5i2i! TT-
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, Summer Street Permanent Housing

AD terms ar¥l coTKfitlons of the Contract not inconsistent \with this Amendment #1 remain In fuU force and
effect Thb amendment shall t>e effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Coundl approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date wrftlen t)etow.

State of New Hampshire
Departmant of Health and Human Services

The 1-akes Region Mental Health Center. Inc.

Na^:Date
Tltfe:

Acknowtedgement of Contractor'a signature:

Stale of M ht- . County of I on 3-v. 2d2-». before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name Is signed above, end acknowledged that s/he executed this document In the
capacity Indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

4.u.> u • i~A.Cyx>i y.
Name and Title of Notary or Juadao of the Peece

My Commission Expires: pawu m i xnamx
Notary Pubfo - Now Hampshtn

My Commission Btplres Marah 22,2022

/

Tho Lak« RogJon MontaJ Health Cortar. he. Amendmert#1

SS-2020-8KS-04-PERMA.12-A01 PaQo2or3
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New Hampshire Oopartmont of Health and H^jman Services
Continuum of Care, Summer Street Permanent Houslr^fl

The preceding Amernlment, having been revlmwed by this office, la apprwod as to tomi. eubstanco, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

!Ur

I hereby certify that the foregoJr)® Amendment was approved by the Goveiw ari^ocuthfa Council of
the State of New Hampohlre at the Meeting on: ® fheettrg)

OPPICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

The Lo*«R«fltonM5frtBlH»o«h center, he. Ani«>4nftntfl1
SS-2020^KS-04-PERMA-l2^1 PogeSoia



OocuSign Envelope ID: 43257A6B-B337-4A4C-9C6D-9BFD8AAA69F1

CBBttosn of anst ftnnaca HoiBfev BMtt B>1 Bd^lt •Aovadnnl n

CbCtadi

ActhiftfMySr

^1 J —■■■UWU J.. I ~
mwiuw»PM8BBmgay
<^araia»-BadSidy.tek,4waiv
QpwfBUB'Riutuia
I - 11 .
P^VWS^DOIr

20%to9MMBOt
miAL HUb niwPBwwwwn

TOXTRBSDOreBT
mo

■BffSBSr
Buooer

un

m

JS.

VTO

*sn
AV71 »•

f&ta
so
«M

ArtMarWnt
OpvraflM

Of Am' OattlUp. On. 4 Vtm^
^BTfcW

oaiMrttfm
ZMRi^MMnh ~~
T0TM.W8RW5HUJIUI

wiimimrmr
SFVU
"T" m\mi

OUDOBT
tUB

UM

t.t87

vmf

TTO

U«v

ttaia
TO

1JM

JOS.

8M

ACthttT

TtoAiimro

mCTB58R*rasr
TOTAl •

BUDoer
T ■BBBBKT

YTD

Ctwrtui.
uoo ueo

OtiMAum«DaAM|LOB«.*WA^
un Utt

HAD Hcao

■ ■ ■■ I 'U
RBWDS^BR

?9«Ra9MdUttto ~
WALMUOHUUAULJUieS

tM

mm tun
Oiira <M*> $ 4U9D

Tbe Ufees Aeitai IMbM HMSSi ciBae<;«tc

UAO M OedfM • Amadtocni n
nsalofl

TamWbthUb 4M»

CenmaerirMBi

oa»



DocuSign Envelope ID; 43257A6B-B337-4A4C-9C6D-9BFD8AAA69F1

KcrripA. R«us4i
AcUng CoofsUsteotf

CbrfMlM L. StBtaekO*
Dlmt»r

JfiN07'20 pn 4il0 DflS

STATE OP NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMiC & HOUSING STABILITY

.  129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH ftMOl
603-171-9474 1-S0W3J.334S EiL 9474

Fii: W3-27M230 TOD Am»: I•300-735-2964 www.dhhi.nb.|0*

January 7,2020

/3 V

His Excsllency. Govemof Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Counci)

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Ewnpmic and Housing
Stability to enter into a solo source agreement wHh The Lakes Region Mental Health
Lacon Street East. Laconia. NH 03246 (vendor #154480 - B001). to provide a Pe^anent Housing
Proaram to Individuals experiencing homelessness through the Federal Continuum of Carea^oCrto eTied W1.048^etfec.ive February 1, 2020 or upon Gor^rnor and Execubve Counci
approval, whichever Is later, through January 31.2021.100% Federal Funds.

Funds are anticipated to-be available in the fonowing account for State Fiscal Years 2020 and
2021 with authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and adjust encumbranc^b^^en BlatrSyears Ihrough Ihe Budget Off.ee, if needed and justified. Funding '<>;'h-^dquest,
contingent upon the U.S. Depariment of Housing and Urban Development funds, which Ihe Department
anticipates receiving Imminently.

05-9M2^23010-7927HEALTHANbSOQ.ALSERVi^^^^^^^

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts (or Program Services TBO $17,103

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD $23,945

Total
$41,048

EXPt-ANATION

This request is sole eourco because (ederal reguiattons require the Departrrient to i^ntify
vendors with whom the Department will contract during the annual federal Continuuin of Care Programappiic" process prior to the grant award being issued.. The U.S. Department of Hous.^ ar^
Urban Development reviews the applications and subsequently awards tuning
application process and timing of grant terms do not at^n with state or f^eral fiscal years, m
date of a grant is based on the month in which each grant's ongmai federai agreement was issu^. This
results in Continuum of Care Program grant start dates, and subsequent renewal approval requests,
occurring in various months throughout the year.
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His Excellency. Govemof CKrislopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

The purpose of this request is to provide a Permanent Housing Program that delivers permanent
housmg and supportive services as well as associated administralivo services to individuate facing
homelessness to increase the ability of participanls to live more Independently.

The vendor will provide permanent housing and supportive services targeted to serve a minimum
of seven (7) individuate who are experiencing homelessness. at any given time, from February 1.2020
through January 31. 2021.

The attached agreement represents one (l) of thirty (30) total agreements, all of which have
renewal dates dispersed throughout the calendar year. The thirty (30) agreements are with vendors who
are located throughout the state to ensure statewide delivery of housing services through New
Hampshire's Continuum of Care Program.

The U S Department of Housing and Urban Development established the Continuum of Core
concept to support communities In their efforts to address the problems of h^hg iri^bility and
homelessness in a coordinated, comprehensive, and strategic fashion. The Continuum of Care serves
three main purposes:

(1) A strategic planning process for addressing homelessness in the community.

(2) A process to engage broad-based, community-wide involvement in addressing homelessrress
on a year-round basis.

(3) An opportunity for communities to submit an application to the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Developmem for resources targeting housing and support services for Individuals
8r>d families who face hometessr^ess.

The Department ensures contract compliance and vendor performance in the following ways;

(1) Annual compliance reviews are performed and Include the collection of data relating to
compliance with administralive rules and contractual agreements.

(2) Statistical reports are submitted by the vendor on a semi-annual basis which include various
demographic Information and income and expense reports, including match dollars.

(3) The vendor is required to maintain timely and accurate data entry in the New Hampshire
Homeless Management Information System, which is the primary reporting tool for outcomes
and activities of shelter and housing programs funded through these contracts.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, the parties have the option to exterxJ contract
services for up to one (1) additional year, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available
furxJing. agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request. Permanent Housing and
supportive services for homeless individuate may not be available In their communities, and there may
be an Increase In demand for services placed upon the region's local virelfare authorities. Lack of services
may also cause Individuals to become homeless, v

Area served: Statewide

Source of funds: 100% Federal Funds from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development. Office of Community Planning and Development. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
Number (CFDA) #14.267. FAIN # TBD.
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and (he Honorable Council

Pago 3 of 3

In the event that the Federal funds become no longer available. General funds will rwt be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

terrin A. Rounds

Acting Commissioner

The Defioruntnt ofHcolUt (t/irf Minion Scrvicu'Minion it lo join ni>\i>inniliu ond fomiUa
in pnuidingopporlnnitict for dlian» tO achieve health and independence.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 43257A6B-B337-4A4C-9C6D-9BFD8AAA69F1

I  '
.1

FORM NUMBER P-37(»cr»ioo 5/8/15)

Subjccr ronimuum ofCfft Symmcf Street Pemnnent HTmypfl fl>S-2020-BHS-M-PERMAii2)
Noiice: This agrctmeni and oil of ils enachmcnu shill become public upon submission W Go^or and

Executive Council fof approval. Any mformaiion that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be elcariy identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

agreement

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GEN ERA L PROVISIONS

I. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1 State Agency Name
NH Deportment of Health and Human Services

1.3 ContraciorName

The Lakes Region Mental Health Center. Inc.

I.? State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 0330I-38S7

1.4 Contritclor Address

40 Beacon Street East
Laconia, NH 03246

1.5 Contractor Phone
Number

(603)524-1100

1.6 Account Number

05-95-42-4230I0-7927-

102-500731

1.7 Completion Date

01/31/2021

1.8 Price Limkaiion

S4I.048

1.9 ConiraciingOfTicer for State Agency
Nathan D. SVhite, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Nunriber
603-271-9631

1.11 Coniroctor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Ch,c4' ̂ f.ecujhirc o^f^c
3 c. I

On JArtu«>»4 3 2o2o . before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
n-vven to be tie pe^ whose name is signed in block 1.11. and acknowledged thai sJhc executed this document m the capacity

.•'inSicaicd inblpck_M2.
1.13.1 .Signa'tuiXL of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

•fSci

- ^ DAWN H. LACROK
cy/ £ 11 y? NotBiy ftibOo- NowHanvohbo

BfyOommfartm ExplroaMarch 22,20aa

Name and Title of Noia^ or lustice of the Peace

1.14 .Slate Agency Signature

1.16 Approval by

Daie:

1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signotory

H. bepanmcmorAdmini/tran^n. Divbionof Personnel (ifopplicoble)

Director, On:

Of If:
iTof Personnel (ifoppHcobie) I

1.17 Approvol by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (i/opplicabis)

1.18 ApproifiU^ ihc Governor and Executive Council (ifeppUcable)

By. On:

Page I of 4
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2. employment OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. Tbo Sato of New Hempehire. twing
ihrough theegency identifiedioblxk I.I (**State ),ettgegei
contmtor identified in block 1. J C'Contrector") to pertbnn,
end the Contnctor shell perfonn, the wofk or sale of goods, or
botK idcnilRed end more perticulerty described in the etuchcd
EXHIBIT A which is ineoipontcd herein by reference
("Semces").

3. effective DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provirioo of this Agreement to the
cootjvy, end subiect to the tpproveJ of the Oovemor end
Exectilive Council of the Sute of New Harapshire. if
eppliceble. this Agreement, end ell obllgalioni of the parties
hercuttdcr, shall become efTective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18. unless rw such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the Stale Agency as shown in block
1.14 rEffeetlve Dale").

3.2 If the Cofltfaciof commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Conuicior prior
(0 the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreemeitt docs not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without litniiaiion. any obligation to pay
the Contiaciof for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
q>eciried in bitxk 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of (be State hercunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hercunder, are
contingent upon the availabiliiy and continued appropriiiion
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of cuch available appropriated
funds. In the event ofa reduction orierminaiioo of
ippfopriaied funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to lerroinatc this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Controctor notice of such terminaiion. The State
shall not be required to nnsfer funds firom any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are redi^d or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/FRJCE LIMITATION/
payment.
5.1 The contreci price, method of payment, and terms of
payment ere identified and more p^icuierty described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5 J The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbufKment to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
perfonnanee hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compcixsation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
(hall have no liability to, the Contractor other than the contract

5.3 The State reserves the right to offw &om any amounu
otherwise payable to the Contractor under (his Agreement
(hose liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, end notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorited, or actually
made hercunder, exceed the Price Limiittion set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contracior shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, sute, county or municipai authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor.,
including, but ruA limited to, civil righu and equal cpportucity
laws. This may include the requirement (o utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with commutucaiioo
disabilities, including vision, hemsg and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contracior
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicanu for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age. sex,
hatidicap, sexual orientaUon. or national origin and will take
effi/mstive action to prevcot such discrimination.
6.3 if this Agreetneot is funded in any part by monies of the
United Sutcs, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisionsofExecutiveOrderNo. II246("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United Sutes Department of Labor (41
CF.R. Part 60). and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the Sute of New Hampshire or (he United Sutes issue to
implement these regulations. The Cootractor further agrees to
permit the Sute or United'Sutes access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascerUining compliaACC with all rales, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms aod conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contracior shall at its own expense provide ell
personnel necessary to ̂ rform the Services. The Contractor
warrenis that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Seivices, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under ell a^licable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Dale in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and ̂ 11 not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it Is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, wbo is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

pnce.

Pfige2of4
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Agrremcni. Thb provision shall survive larninalicn of <hl$
Asrentiem.

7.3 The Contiaciing Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be ihe State's represeniatlve. In the event
of uty dispute concerning the inlerpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of Ihe.following acts or omissions of (he
Cootracior shall constitute an event of default herMnder
C'Event of Default"):
8.1.1 ftilure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
tchedsie;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; viOfw
$.1.3 btlure to perform any other covenant, term or condttion
ofthii AgrecmeoL
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the Sutc
may take any one, or more, ot all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Dcfsuli and lequirirg it to be remedied witl^, in tto
absence of a greater or lesser spccifiuiion of time, thirty (30)
days from the dale of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agrecnteot, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contrtctor notice of termination;
1.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contraclor during the
period!fn>m the date of such notice until such lime as the Sttte
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor,
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the Stale may owe to
the Conoactof any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event ofDefauIi; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of lU
remedies at Uw or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONnDENTlAEITY/
PR£S£RVAT1<DN.
9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean ell
mforroalion and things developed or obtained during the
perfomuutce of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, repor^.
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, mcmomnda. papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.
9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of (be State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination ofthis Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter9l-Aoroihere*isiingldw. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

Page 3

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early idrmitaiion of
this Agrtemenl for any reason other than the compleiton of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to (he Contracimg
Officer, not later than fifteen (13) days after the date of
tennination, a report CTcfmination Report") des^bing in
detail all Services performed, and the cootraci price earned, to
and including the date of lerminaiioo. Tbe fom, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Fisa) Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of ihi« Agrtemetii the Contractor is in all
respeeu an independent contractor, and is neither an agent oor
an employtte of the Slate. Neither the Conimctor noriny of hs
ofTiccra. employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other onolumenti provided by the State to its employees.

12. assicnment/delecation/subcontracts.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior wntlcn notice and
consent of (he State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The ConlraciOf shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its ofTicera and
employees, from and against any and all loss^ suffered by the
Slate, its officers and employees, and any endall claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the Stale, its officcn
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oO the acts or otnissions of (he
Contractor. Noiwiihsiandiog the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the Sute. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
Survive the (eraunatioo of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contraclor shall, et its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in foroe, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
ctoims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than 11,000,000pcr occurrence and $2,000.000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% ofthe whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and cndoraementt approved for use in the
Stale of New Hampshire by the N.H. Departmcru of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

of 4
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14.3 The Contrectof ih»ll himuh !o Ihe Cbniracting Office
ideotifted in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a ceiiiricaie(s)
of insurance for all insunuKC feQUircd under this Agrttment.
Coniraclor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9. or his or her successor, eertificafefs) of
insunooe for all renewBl(t) of insurance required under this
Agfcancnt no later than t^y (30) days prior to the expirtiion
date ofeachofthe insurance policies. Theceflif»cate(s)of
insunmce and any renewals tlMreof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each cemncale<s) of
tDsuTMce ahali contain a clause requihng the insurer to
provide the Contrectiog Officer identified to block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of car«ellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS* COMPENSATION.
15.1 By sigoing this agrecmeDi, the CoT>o«cior agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A
("Wofktrs' Comptnsation").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 - A. Contractor shall
maintaio, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, psymtnt of Workers* Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake punutnt to this Agreement. Contractor shall
fiiraish the Contracting Officer idenlifted in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers* Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any
applicable renewBl(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
iftcorporaicd herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or berwfit for Contractor, or

. any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable Slate ofNew Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the Suie to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Deftuli shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of(he right oTthe State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or Other Event of Default
on (he part of (he Cmitractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
lime of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be ame^cd,
waived or discharged only by an inslrunenl in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or disch^ by the Oovemor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, (tile or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be consinied in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Himpdiire. and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by (be parties to express their mutual
intent, and no lule of construction sbill be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties bereto do not imend lo
bcnefii any third parties end Otis Agreemeni ihat) eoi be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings througbouiihe Agreemem
are for reference ptirpcscs only, and the words contaioed
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. AdditionftI provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

13. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any slate or federal taw, the remslning
pfovisioni of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, cottsiirutes the entire Agreement and
underalanding between the parties, and supenedes all prior
Agreemenu and understandings relating hereto.

Page 4 of4
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New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services
Continuum of Care, Summer Street Permanent Housing

Exhibit A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Permanent Housing Program

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance sen/ices they will
provide to persons with limited English proficierK:y to ensure meaningful access to their programs
and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective date, submitted to.

NHDHHS
Bureau of Housing Supports
106 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future slate or federal legislation or court orders rr^y
have an Impact on the services described herein, the Stale, through the Bureau of Hou^ng
Supports (BHS), has the right to modify service priorities and expenditure requirements under
this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. For the purposes of this agreement, the Department has Identified the Contractor as a
subrecipienl. In accordance with 2 CFR 200.300.

1.4. Notwithstanding the confidentiality, procedures established under 24 CFR 578.103(b). tJS
Department of Housing and Urban Deveiopmen! (HUD), the HUD Office of the Inspector
General, and the Comptroller General of the United Slates, or any of their authorized
representatives, must have the right of access to all books, documents, papers, or^her records
of the Contractor that are pertinent to the Continuum of Care (CoC) grant, in order to ma)^
audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcripts. These rights of access are not limited to.the
required retention period, but last as long as the records are retained.

1 5 The Contractor shall adhere to federal and state financial and confidentiality laws, and comply
with the program narratives, budget detail and narrative, and amendments thereto, as detail^
In the applicable Notice of Funding Available (NOFA) CoC Project Application approved by HUD.

1.6. The Contractor shall provide sen/ices according to HUD regulations outlined in Public Law 102-
550 and 24 CFR 578 and other written, appropriate HUD policies and directives.

1 7 The Contractor shall ensure all programs are licensed to provide client level data irito the Nw
Hampshire Homeless Management Information System (NH HMIS). Programs shall follow NH
HMIS policy, including specific information required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and
time required for data entry. Contractor shall comply with Exhibit I. Health Insuran^Portablhfy
and Accountability Act Business Associate Agreement and Exhibit K. DHHS Secunly
Requirements, which are attached hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

1 8 The Contractor shall cooperate fully with and answer aQ questions related to this contract frorn
representatives of the Stale or Federal agencies who may conduct a penodic review of
performarKe or an inspection of records.

1.9. The Contractor shall support the primary goal of this program, which is to facilitate the movement
of homeless and chronically homeless individuals and families to permanent housing and
maximum self-suffici^cy.

2. ScooeofWork

2 1 The Contractor shall implement a Coordinated Entry System lor all projects funded by the CoC
Program. Emergency Solutions Grants Program, and Housing Opportunities for Persons with
AIDS Program. In accordance with CoC inlerim rule, 24 CFR 578.

IS^202MHS-044»C«UA.tJ pAflftlolS 0«»_X
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, Summer Street Permanent Housing

Exhibit A

2.2. The Contractor shall provide a Permanent Housing program that ts targeted to serve seven (7)
individuals who are experiencing homelessness or chronic homelessness. and which includes,
but Is not limited to;

2.2.1. Utilizing the Housing First model, ensuring:

2.2.1.1. Barriera to entering housing are not Imposed beyond those required by
regulation or statute: and

2.2.1.2. Participation will only terminate for the most severe reasons, once availabte
options have been exhausted to help a participant maintain housing; arKl

2.2.2. Developing of a stabilization plan and crisis mai^agement plan with the participant at
Intake and. at a mmlmum, annually. An ongoing Assessment of Housing and Supportive
Services Is required, with the uttimete goal being esslstanca to the participant in obtairung
the skills necepary to live In the community Irtdependently.

2.3. The Contractor shall establish and maintain standard operating procedures to ensure CoC
program funds are used in accordance with 24 CFR 576 and shall establish and maintain
sufficient records to enable HUD and BHS to determine Contractor requirement compliance.
Including:

2.3.1. Continuum of Care Records: The Conlrector shall maintain the following documentation
related to establishing and operating a CoC:

2.3.1.1. Records of Homeless Status. The Contractor shall maintain acceptable
evidence of homeless stalus In accordance with 24 CFR 576.500(b);

2.3.1.2. Records of at Risk of Homelessness Status. The Contractor shall maintain
records that establish "at risk of homelessness' status of each individual or
family who receives CoC homelessness prevention assistance, as identified In
24 CFR 576.500(c); and

2.3.1.3. Records of Reasonable Belief of Immirtent Threat of Harm. The Contractor shall
maintain documentation of eech program participant who moved to a different
CoC due to Imminent threat of further domestic violence, dating violence, sexual
assault, or stalking, as defined In 24 CFR 578.51 (c)(3). The Contractor shall
retain documentation that Includes, but Is not limited to:

2.3.1.3.1 The original Incidence of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual
assault, or stalking, only if the . original violence Is not already
documented (n the program participant's case file. This may be
written observation of the housing or service provider; a letter or other
documentation from a victim service provider, social worker, legal
assistance provider, pastoral counselor, mental health provider, or
other professional from whom the victim has sought assistance;
medical or dental records; court records or law enforcement records:
or v^tten certifrcetion by the program participant to whom the
violence occurred or by the head of household; and

2.3.1.3.2 The reasonable belief of Imminent threat of further domestic violence,
dating violence, or sexual assault or stalking, which would Include
threats from a third-party, such as a friend or family member of the
perpetrator of the violence. This may be Nvritten observation by the
housing or service provider, a letter or other documentation from a
victim senrice provider, social worker, legal assistance provider,

T>>« L»k«t U*M*I Huwt C«nMf. tnc. EkNMA Conncia'MlUI»_^K2^^
SS203t>eHS-044>eRUA.I7 Oata
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New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services
Continuum of Care, Summer Street Permanent Housing

Exhibit A

pastoral counselor, mental health provider, or other professional from
whom the viclim has sought assistance; current restraining order,
recent court order or other court records: law enforcement report or
records; communication records from the perpetrator of the violence
or family members or frier^ds of the perpetrator of the violence.
Including emails, voicemails, text messages, and social media posts;
or a written certification by the program participant to whom the
violence occurred or the head of household.

2.3.1.4. Records of Annual Income. For each program participant who receives housing
assistance where rent or an occupancy charge Is paid by the program
participant, the Contractor shall keep.the following documentation of artnual
Income:

2.3.1.4.1. Income evaluation form specified by HUO and completed by the
Contractor;

2.3.1.4.2. Source documents, which may Include the most recent wage
statement, unemployment compensation statement, public benefits
statement, and bank statements for the assets held by the program
participant and income received before the date of the evahiation; and

2.3.1.4.3. To the extent that source documents are unobtainable, a written
statement by a relevant third party, which may include an employer
or a government benefits administrator, or the written certiftcation by
the Corrtractor's intake staff of the oral verification by the relevant third
party of the income the program participant received over the most
recent period; or

2.3.1.4.4. To the extent that source documents and third-party verification are
unobtainable, the written certification by the prograrn participant of
the amount of income that the program participant is reasonably
expected to receive over the three (3) month period following the
evaluation.

2.3.1.5. Program ParticlDant Records. In addition to evidence of homelessness status
or at-risk-of-horr»elessnes8 status, as applicable, the Contractor shall keep
records for each program participant that document:

2.3.1.5.1. The services and assistance provided to that program participant,
including evidence that the Contractor, conducted an annual
assessment of services for those program participants that remain in
the program for more than a year and adjusted the service package
accordingly. 8r>d including case management services as provided In
24CFR 57B.37(aXl)(iiKF):and

2.3.1.5.2. Where epplicable. compliance with the torminalion of assistance
requirement In 24 CFR 578.91.

2.3.1.6. Housing Standards, The Contractor shall retain documentation of compliance
with the housing slandards in 24 CFR 578.75(b). including inspection reports.

2.3.1.7. Senhces Provided. The Contractor shali document the types of supportive
services provided under the Contractor's program and the amounts spent on
those services. The Contractor shall keep documenlalion that the records were

T>« trtM R^lon M«nul Hajfth . Inc EcNMA CwifCior wan
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reviewed at least annually and that Ihe service package offered to program
participants was adjusted as necessary.

2.4. The Contractor shall maintain records that document compliance with:
2.4.1. The Qroanlzational conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(c);

2.4.2. The Continuum of Care Board confTict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(b); and
2.4.3. The Other Q'nfl'Ctg ffioulrements In 24 CFR 576.95(d). i

2 5 The Contractor shall develop. Implement and retain a copy of the (wrsonal CTnflict.ol-intoresl
p^cy^t compliee with the requirements in 24 CFR 578.95. induding records supporting any
exceptions to the personal conflict-of-interest prohibitions.

2.6. The Contractor shall comply and retain documentatton of compliance with:
2 51 The Homeless Participation requirements in accordance with 24 CFR 576.75(9).

2.6.2. The Failh-basftd Activities requirements in accordance with 24 CFR 578.67(b);
2 6 3 Affimiativetv Furthering Fair HouslntLbv maintaining copies of aO marketing. outrMch

and other rnateriats used jg inforrn^lglbte persons of the program In accordance with 24
CFR 576.93(c);

2.6.4. Qiher Federal Reouirements in 24 CFR 578.99. as applicable;

2.6.5. Other Records Soadfied bv HUD. The Contractor must keep other records as specified
by HUD; and

2.6.6. Procurement Requirements In 24 CFR 85.36 and 24 CFR part 84.

2.7. Confidentiality. In addition to meeting spedfic confidentiality and security requiremente for H!\^S
data (76 FR 76917). the Contractor shall develop and implement wntten procedures to ensure.
2 7 1 All records containing protected identifying Information of any Individual or family

applies for and/or receives Continuum of Care assistance shall be kept secure and
confidential;

2 7 2 The address or location of any family violence project assisted with Continuum of Care
funds are not to be made public, except with written authonzation of the person
responsible for the operation of the project; and

2 7 3 The address or location of any housing of a program participant will rwt be made public.
except as provided under a preexisting privacy policy of the reapiant or subrecipient and
consistent ̂ Ih Slate and local laws regarding privacy and obligations of confidenljality.

9 n PArifid ftf Record Retention. The Contractor shall ensure all records, originals or copies-made
^ ̂ SKhS"ng. or other seller methods, pertai^ng to^nCnut^ of ̂ re fut^s
are retained for five (5) years following the Conlract Completion Date and r^ipt of payment
by the Contractor unless records are otherwise required to be maintained for a penod in excess
of the five (5) year period according to state or federal law or regulation.

3. Pfooram Reo^rtlno RooulreiTMints

3.1. The Contractor shall submit the following reports:

3 1 1 Annual Padnrnianra Report (APR): Within thirty (30) days after tha Contract Completion
Date an APR Ehaii be submitted to BHS that summarizes the aggregate results of he
Project Activities, showing In particular how the Conlrador Is carrying out [ha^ject in

8S202«MS-044»£RMA.12 P»«*4o«5
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the rrtanner proposed in the application submitted to HUD for the relevant fiscal year
NOFA. The APR shall be in the form required or specified by the State, and submitted to
the address listed in section 1.1. Exhibit A; and

3.1.2. Omer Reports as requested by the State in compiianco with NH HMIS policy.

4. Contract Admtnlstration

4.1. The Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff to attend aD meetings or trainings requested
by BHS including trolnlng in data security and confidentiality, according to state and federal
laws. To the extent possible. BHS shall notify the Contractor of the need to attend such meetings
five (5) working days in advance of each meeting.

4.2. The Contraclor shall Inform BHS of any staffing changes within thirty (30) days of the change.

5. Performance Measures

5.1. The Contractor shaD adhere to all terms end conditions as set forth In the applicable HUD Project
Application #SF-424.

5.1.1. The Contractor shall abide by the performance measures as detailed in all applicable
HUD regulations IrKiuding, but not limited, to the following:

5.1.1.1. httD5://wvw.hudexchariQe.info/DroQrams/coc/svstem-ocrformance'
measures/#Quidance:

5.1.1.2. 24 CFR 578: Continuum of Care Program: and

5.1.1.3. Public Law 102-550.

5.1.2. The Contractor shall be accountable to all performance measures as detailed In Section
3., Program Reporting Requirements. Exhibit A.

5.2. The Bureau Administrator of BHS. or destgnee. may observe perfonmance. activities and
documents under this Agreement.

6. Dallvarables

6 1 The Contractor shall Implement and participate In the Coordinated Entry System, as detailed in
Section 2 Scope of Work, Subsection 21.. above. In accordance with the CoC Program interim
rule. 24 CFR Part 578 and as amended.

6.2. The Contractor shall provide a permanent housing program as outlined In Section 2 Scope of
Work. Subsection 2.2., elwve, srKl other written HUD policies and directives as appropriate.

6.3. The Contractor shall provide accurate and timely reporting as detailed in Section 3.. Program
Reporting Requirements, above.

6.4. The Contractor shaD be subject to all performance measures as outlined in Section 5.
Performance Measures, above.

•n»oUk*»a4tfonMwt»IH«ifthC4«tef.lnc. EiNMA CenersdwInMeb

S2020-6HS-04-PCRMA.12
'/3/zO



DocuSign Envelope ID: 43257A6B-B337-4A4C-9C6D-98FD8AAA69F1

New Hampshlro Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, Summer Street Permanent Housing

Exhibit B

(ylPfHQD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

1. parmanent Housing Pfoaram Funding

1.1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37. Block 1.8.
Price Limitation for the services provided pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of Services.

1.2. This Agreement Is funded with federal funds made available under the Catalog of Federal
Domestic Assistance (CFDA), as follows:

1.2.1. Federal Funds: 100%

1.2.2. CFDA#: 14.267

1.2.3. FAIN#: TBD

1 3 The Contractor shall provide the services in Exhibit A. Scope of Service in compllarrce with
funding requirements. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the
Contractor's current and/or future funding.

2. financial Reports

2.1. As part of the peftormance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the followir*g;

2.1.1. Audited Flr^andal Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in
accordarwe wlh 2 CFR part 200.

2.1.2. One (1) copy of the Audited Financial Report within thirty (30) days of the
completion of said report to the Stale at the followir^ address:

NH OHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports
105 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

2.2. Conformance with 2 CFR part 200: The Contractor shall use grant funds only in accordance
with procedures, requirements, and principles specified in 2 CFR part 200.

2 3 If the Cofrtraclof Is not subject to the requirements of 2 CFR part 200, the Contractor shall
submit one (1) copy of an audited financial report to the Department utilizing the guidelines
set forth by the Comptroller General of the United States in "Standards for Audit of
Governmental Organizations. Program Aclivilies. and Functions," within ninety (90) days
after contract completion date.

3. Pfolect Costs: Payment Schedule: Review bvthe State

3 1 Project Costs; As used in this Agreement, the term "Project Costs" means all expenses
direclJy or indirectly Incurred by the Contractor In the performance of the Project Activities,
as determined by the Slate to be eligible and allowable for payment In accordance with
Put>lic Law 102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in 2 CFR part 200 as
revised from time to time and with the rules, regulations, and guidelines established by the
Stale. Nonprofit subcontractors shall meet the requirements of 2 CFR part 200.

3.2. Continuum of Care funds may be used to pay for eligible costs listed In 24 CFR 578.39
through 578.63 when used to establish and operate projects under five program
components: permanent housing; transitional housing; suppcwlive services only; HMIS; and.
in some cases, homeless prevention. Administrative costs are ellgibte for all components.
AH components are subject to the restrictions on combining funds for certain eliglble
activities In a single project found in 24 CFR 578.87(c).

Cc*4fKttf W3»l>,
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3.3. Match Funds:

3.3.1. The Contractor shall provide sufficient matching funds, as required by HUD
regulations and policies described In 24 CFR 578.73.

3.3.2. Match requirements shall be documented with each payment request.
3 3 3 The Contractor shall match all grant funds except for leasing funds, with no less

than twenty-five (25) percent of funds or In-ldnd contributions from other sources.
3 3 4 The ConUactor shall utilize cash match for the cost of activities that are eligible

under subpart O of 24 CFR 578. The Contractor shall:

3.3.4.1. Maintain records of the source and use of contributions made to satisfy
the match requirement in 24 CFR 578.73.

3.3.4.2. Ensure records indicate the grant and fiscal year for which each matching
contribution is counted.

3.3.4.3. Ensure records Irvulude methodologies that specify how the values of third
party In-klnd contributions were derived.

3 3 4 4 Ensure records Include, to the extent feasible, volunteer services that are
supported by the same methods used to support ttw allocation of regular
personnel costs.

3.4. payment of Project Costs:

3 4 1 The Slate agrees to provide payrneni on a cost reimbursement basis for actual,
eligible expenditures incurred In the fulfillment of this agreement, and shall be In
accordance with the approved line items as specif»ed In Exhibit B-1. Budget, and as
defined by HUD urrder the provtelons of Public Law 102-550 and other applicable
regulations, subject to the availabilily of sufficient funds.

3.4.2. The Contractor shall only be reimbursed for those costs designated as eligible and
allowable costs as staled in Section 4. Expense Eligibility, below. The Contractor
must have written approval from the Slate prior to billing for any other expenses.

3.4.3. Payment of Project Costs shall be made through the utilization of funds as provided
through the U.S. Department of Houstrg end Urban Development Title XIV Housing
programs under the Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to
Housing Act (HEARTH Act). Subtitle A-Housing Assistance (Public Law 102-550). in
an amount and lime period not to exceed as spedfied In form P-37. General
Provisions.

3.4.4. Schedule of Payments:

3.4.4.1. All reimbursement requests for a!) Project Costs, including the final
reimbursement request for this Contract, shall be submitted by the
fifteenth (15lh) day of each month, for the previous month, ar^
accompanied by an Invoice from the Contractor for the amount of each
requested disbursement along with a payment request form and any other
documentation required, as designated by Ihe State, which shall be
completed and signed by the Contractor.

3.4.4.2. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty pO) days of
receipt of each invoice, subsequenl to approval of Ihe'submitted Invoice
and if suffiden! funds are available.

C«»«. Ml-
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3.4.4.3. The Contractor shall keep records of their activilies related to Department
programs and services, end shaD provide such records and any additional
firtancial information if requested by the State to verify expenses.

3.4.4.4. In lieu of hard copies sut)mltted to the address listed in Paragraph 2.1.2.,
above., aU involc^ may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed
to: housinQSUDOOftsinvotces@dhhs.nh.Qov

3.5. Review of the State Disallowance of Cosis;

3.5.1. At any time during the performanoe of the Services, and upon receipt of the Annual
PerformaiKe Report. Termination Report or Audits Rnanclal Report, the State may
review all Project Costs incurred t>y the Contractor erxf all payments made to date.

3.5.2. Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items of expenses that ere rxit
determined to be aOowabie or are determined to be in excess of actual
expenditures, and shall, by written notice specifying the disallowed expenditures.
Inforfning the Contractor of any such disallowance.

3.5.3. If the State disallcws costs for which payment has not yet been made, it shall refuse
to pay such costs. Any amounts awarded to (he Contractor pursuant to this
Agreement are subject to recapture.

3.5.4. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees (hat funding
under this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or In part, in the event of non*
compliance with any Federal or State (aw. rule or regulation applicable to the
sen/lces provided, or if the said services, products, required report submissions, as
detailed in Exhibits A and 6. or NH«HMIS data entry requirements have not been
satisfactorily completed in accordance with terms and conditions of this Agreement.

4. Expense EliQlbllttv

4.1. Based on the continued recelpt/avaDability of federal funds, the Contractor shall utilize
Contirxjum of Care Program funds specifi^ in this Exhibit B from the HUD Continuum of
Care Program, for contract services.

4.2. Qperatino Expenses:

4.2.1. Eligible operating expenses include:

4.2.1.1. Maintenance and repair of housing.

4.2.1.2. Property taxes and insurance (including property and car).

4.2.1.3. Scheduled payments to reserve for replacement of major systems of the
housing (provided that the payments must be based on the useful life of
the system and expected replacement cost).

4.2.1.4. Building security for a structure where more than Trfty (50) percent of the
units or area Is paid for with grant funds.

4.2.1.5. Utilities, Including electricity, gas and water.

4.2.1.6. Furniture and equipment.

4.2.2. Ineligible costs include;

4.2.2.1. Rental assistance and operating costs in the same project.

4.2.2.2. Operating costs of emergency shelter and supportive service-only
facilities.

Tb« Uk«s R«olv> MtmM HWKh lAc. CxAVlB Contr»ctor hUab

8$-202<>eKS4>4^£XUA>l2 P»9«3o(9 Dalo.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 43257A6B-B337-4A4C-9C6D-9BFD8AAA69F1

Now Hampshiro Oopartment of Hoatth and Human Servicos
Continuum of Care, Summer Street Permanent Housing

Exhibit B

4.2.2.3. Maintenance and repair of housing wtiere the costs of maintaining and
repairing the housing are Included In the lease.

4.3. SuDoorllve Services

4.3.1. Eligible supportive services costs shall comply with all HUO regulations in 24 CFR
570.53, and are available to individuate actively participating In the permanent
housing program.

4.3.2. Eligible costs shall Include:

4.3.2.1. Annual assefisment 9t Sarviee Needs. The costs of the assessment
required by 578.53(8) (2).

4.3.2.2. Assistance with movinQ costs. Reasonable one-time moving costs are
eligible and include (ruck rental and hiring a moving company.

4.3.2.3. Case manaQement. The costs of assessing, arranging, coordinating, and
monitoring the delivery of Individualized services to meet the needs of the
program paf1ictpanl(s) are eligible costs.

4.3.2.4. Child Care. The costs of establishing and operating child care, and
providing chiW-care vouchers, for children from families experiencing
homelessrress, including providing meals and snacks, end comprehensive
arvj coordir\ated developmental activities are eligible.

4.3.2.5. Education Services. The costs of improving knowledge and basic
educational skills are eligibie.

4.3.2.6. Emolovment assistance and lob tralnino. The costs of establishing and
operating employment assistance and job training programs are eligible,
including classroom, online and/or computer instruction, on-the-job
instruction, services that assist Individuals In securing employment,
acquiring teaming skiPs. and/or increasing earning potential. The cost of
providing reasonable stipends to program participants in employment
assistance and job training programs is also an eligible cost.

4.3.2.7. Food. The cost of providing meals or groceries to program participants is
eligible.

4.3.2.8. Housirw search and counselinQ services. Costs of assislir>g eligible
program participanls to locate, obtain, and retain suitable housing are
eligibie.

4.3.2.9. Leoal services. Eligible costs are the fees charged by licensed attorneys
and by pefSon(8) under the super>nslon of licensed attorneys, for advice
and representation in matters that Interfere with homeless indivldudl or
famil/s ability to obtain and retain housing.

4.3.2.10. Life Skills traininQ. The costs of teaching critical Pfe management skills
that may never have'lieen teamed or have been lost durir^g course of
physical or mental illness, domestic violence, substance abuse, and
homelessness are eligible. These services must be necessary to assist
the program participant to function Independently in the community.
Component life skills trairiing are budgeting of resources end morrey
management, household managemeni, conflict managoment. shopping
for food end other needed items, nutrition, the use of public transportation,
and parent training.
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4,3.2.11. Mental Health Sefvlces. Eligible costs are the direct outpatlont IrealmorM
of mental health conditions that are provided by licensed professionals.
Component sarviceS' are crtsra Interventions; counseling; Individual,
famBy. or group therapy sessions; the prescription of psycholropic
medications or explanations about the use and management of
medications; and combinations of therapeutic approaches to address
multiple problems.

4 3 2,12. QutpaHent health swvlces. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient
treatment of medical conditior^s when provided by licensed medical
professiorials.

4 3 2.13. Outreach Services. The costs of activities to engage persons for the
purpose of providing Immediate support and Intervention, es well as
identifying potential program participants, are eligiWa.

4.3.2.14. Substance abuse treatment services. The costs of progrem parlici^nl
intake and assessment, outpatient treatment, group and individual
counseling, and drug testing are eligible. Inpatient detoxification and other
inpatient drug or alcohol treatment are ineligible.

4 3 2.15. Transportation Services, as described in 24CFR 578(e) (15).

432 16 Utilltv Deposits. This form of assistance consists of paying for utility
deposits. Utility deposits must be one-time, paid directly to utility
companies.

4.3.2.17. Direct pfovtsion of services. If the sennce descnbed In 24 CFR 578.53(e)
(1H16) of this section is being directly delivered by the recipier^ or
subreclplenl, eligible costs for those services are described In 24 CFR
578(0) (17).

4 3,2.18. Ineligible costs. A/iy cost not described as eligible under this secUon 4.3.2
is not en eligible cost of providing supportive sendees using Continuum of
Care program funds. Staff training and costs of obtaining professlorw!
ikansure or certifications needed to provide supportive services are not
eligible costs.

4 3 2.19. Special populations. All eligible costs are eligible to the same extent for
program participants who are unaccompanied homeless youth; persons
living with HIV/AIOS; and victims of domestic violence, dating violer>ce,
sexual assault, or stalking.

4.4. Ryntal Assistance

4.4.1 Grant funds may be used for rental assistance for homeless individuals and families.
442 Rental assistance cannot be provided to a program participanl who is already

receiving rental assistance, or living In a housing unit receiving rental assistance or
operating assistance through other federal. State, or local sources.

443 Rental assistance shell be admlnlstefed in accordance
procedures established by the Continuum as set forth in 24 CFR 57e.7(a) (9) and 24
CFR 578.51. and may bo:

4.4.3.1. Short term, up to 3 months of rent;

4.4.3.2. Medium term, for 3-24 months; or

SS-a020aKS-lM^ERMA-)3
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4.4.3.3. Lof>9-term, for longer than 24 months.

4.4.4. Grant funds ni>ay be used for security deposits in an amount not to exceed 2 months
of rent.

4.4.5. An advance payment of the last month's rent may be provided to the landlord, in
addition to the security deposit and payment of firet month a rent.

4.4.6. Rental assistance will only be provided for a unit If the rent Is reasonable, as
determined by the Contraclof. In relation to rents being charged for comparable
unassisted units, taking into account the location, size. type, quality, amenilies.
facilities, and nnanagement and maintenance of each unit.

4 4 7 The Contractor may use grant funds in an amount not to exceed one month s rertf (o
' * ' pay for any damage to housing due to the action of a pr^m participant ^

I ftflftino fu^ only: Property damages may be paid only from funds paid to the
landlord from security deposits.

4 4 8 Housing shall be in compliance with at! State and local housing codes, licensing
■  requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act.^and any other

requirements of the jurisdiction In which the housing Is located regarding the
condition of the stiucture and operation of the housing or services.

4.4.9. The Contractor shall provide one of the following types of rental assistance:
based, Project-based, or Sponsor-based rental assistance as described by MUD in
24 CFR 578.51.

4 4 9 1 Tftnant-based rental assistance is rental assistance in which program
participants choose housing of an appropriate size In wWch to reside.
When necessary to racllltate the coordination of supportive eervices.
recipients and subrecipienls may require program participants to live Iri a
specirtc area for their entire period of participation, or in a si^cmc
Blrudure for the first yaar and In a specific area (or the remainder of their
period of particlpaUon. Short and medium term rental assistance provided
under the Rapid Re-Housing program component must be tenant based
rental assistance.

4 4 9 2. Soonsof-based rental assistance is provided through contracts bet^en
the recipient ar>d sponsor organization. A sponsor may be a private,
nonprofit organization, or a community mental health agency estabtlshed
as a public nonprofit organization. Program participants must reside In
housing owned or leased by the sponsor.

4 4 9 3 Pfoiect-basftd rental assistance Is provided through a contract with the
owner of an existing structure, where the owner agrees to lease the
subsidized units to program participants. Program participants will not
retain rental assistance if they move.

4 4 9.4. por proiect'based. soonsor-base^, or tenant»based rental asslstaWi
program participants must enter Into a lease egrieement for a term of al
least one year, which is terminable for cause. The leases rnust be
automatically renewable upon expiration for terms that are a minimum of
one month long, except on prior notice by either party.

4.5. Administrative Costs:

4.5.1. Eligible administrative costs Indudo;
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4.5.1.1. The Contrectof may use funding awarded under this part, for the payment
of project administrative costs related to the planning and execution of
Continuum of Care activilles. This does not include staff arxJ ovefhe^
costs directly related to'carrying out activities eligible under 24 CFR
578.43 through 678.57. because those costs are eligible as part of those
activities.

4 512 General management oversight and coordination. Costs of <^rall
program management, coordination, monitoring and evaluation. These
costs 4ndude. but ere not limited to. necessary expenditures for the
following:

4.5.1.2.1. Salaries, wages, and related costs of the Contractor's staff, or other
staff ervgeged in program admlntetraUon.

4.5.1.2.1.1. In charging costs to this category, the Contractor may
include the enlire salary, wages, and related costs allo«ble
to the program of each person whose primary
responsibilities with regard to the program involve program
administration assignments, or the pro rate share of the
salary, wagas, and related costs of each person whose job
Includes any program administration assignments. The
Contractor may only use one of these methods for each
fiscal year grant, Program administration assignments
include the following:

4.5.1.2.1.1.1. Preparing program budgets and schedules, and
amendments to those budgets and schedules;

4.6.1.2.1.1.2. Developing systems for ensurir^ compliance with
program requirements:

4.5.1.2.1.1.3. Developing interagency agreements and
agreements with subrecipients and Contractors to
carry out program activities;

4.5.1.2.1.1.4. Monitoring program activities for progress arxJ
compliaf>ce with program requirements:

4.5.1.2.1.1.5. Preparing reports and other documents related to
the program for submission to HUD;

4.5.1.2.1.1.6. Coordinating the solution of audit and monitoring
findings;

4.5.1.2.1.1.7. Preparing reports end other documents directly
related to the program submission to HUD;

4.5.1.2.1.1.8. Evaluating program results against slated
objectives;

451 2.1.1.9. Managing or supervising persons whose primary
responslbiUties with regard to the program Include
such assignments as those described In sections
4.5.1.2.1.1.1. through 4.5.1.2.1.18. above;
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4.5.1.2.1.1.10. Travel coats incurred forofTiciai business in.carrylng
out the program;

4.5.1.2.1.1.11. Administrative services performed under third party
contracts or agreements, including such services as
general legal services, accounting services, and
audit services;

4.5.1.2.1.1.12. Other costs for goods and services required for
admlnistraUon of the program, including euch goods
end services as rental or purtfiase of equipment,
Insurance, utilities, office supplies, artd rental erKi
maintenance, but not purchase, of office space;

4.5.1.2.1.1.13. Training on Continuum of Care requirements. Costs
of providing training on Continuum of Care
requirements and attending KUD-Spons6red
Continuum of Care trainings; and

4.5.1.2.1.1.14. Environmental review. Costs of carrying out the
en^rorunental review responsibllilias under 24 CFR
578.31.

4.6. Leasing:

4.8.1. Wher> the Contractor Is leasing the structure, or portions thereof, grar\t funds may be
used to pay for 100 percent of the costs of leasing a structure or structures, or
portions thereof, to provide housing or supportive services to hometess persons for
up to three (3) years. Leasing funds may rwt be used to lease units or structures
ovmed by the contractor, their parent organization, any other related organization(s).
or organizations that are members of a partnership, where the partnership owns the
structure, unless HUD authorized an exception for good cause.

4.6.2. Requirements:

4.6.2.1. Leasing stnictures. When grants are used to pay rent for ail or part of a
structure or stnjctures. the rent paid must be reasonable In relation to
rents being charged In the area for comparable space. In addition, the
rent paid may r>ot exceed rents currently being charged by the same
owner for comparable unassisted space.

4.6.2.2. Leaslrw individual units. When the grant funds are used to pay rent for
Individual housing units, the rent paid must reasonable in relalioo to rents
being charged for comparable units, taking Into account the localion, size,
type, quality, amenities, facilities, and management services. In addition,
the rents may not exceed rents currently being charged for comparable
units, and the rent paid may not exceed HUD-determined fair marlret
rents.

4.6.2.3. Utilities, If electricity, gas. end water are included in the rent, these utilities
may be paid from leasing funds. If utilities are not provided by the
landlord, these utility costs are operating costs, except for supportive
service facilities. If the structure Is being used as a supportive service
facility, then these utility costs are a supportive service cost.

Hw L*lie» Region Mentii Centw. Inc. ExWWlB Contredor WJeto,
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4.6.2.4. Security deoosiia and first and last mofih'fl rent. The Contractor may use
grant funds to pay security deposits. In en amount not to exceed 2 months
of actual rent. An advance payment of last month's rent may be provided
to the landlord In addition to security deposit and payment of the flrst
month's rent.

4.6.2.5. Occupancy aoreements and subleases. Occupancy agreements and
subleases are required es specified in 24 CFR 578.77(a).

4.6.2.6. Cfltculalton of occupancy charges and rent. Occupancy charges and rert
from program pdrticl(>3nts must be catculated as provided in 24 CFR
578.77.

f

4.6.2.7. ProQfflm Income. Occupancy charges and rent collected from program
participants are program income and may be used as provided undv 24
CFR 578.97.

4.6.2.8. Transition. Refer to 24CFR 578.49(b)(8).

4.6.2.9. Rent paid may only reflect actual costs and must be reasonable In
comparison to rents charged in the area for similar housing units.
Documentation of rent raascnabloness must be kept on file by the
Contractor.

4.6.2.10. The portion of rent paid with grant funds may no\ exceed HUD-determlned
fair mariiet rents.

4.6.2.11. The Contractor shall pay individual !ar\diords directly; fur>ds may not be
given directly to participants to pay leasing costs.

4.6.2.12. Property damaoes may only t>e paid from money paid to the landlord for
security deposits.

4.6.2.13. The Contractor cannot tease a buiidInQ thai it plreadv owns to ItseH.

4.6.2.14. Housino must be in compBance with ell State and local housing codes,
licensing requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act,
and any other requirements, of the jurisdiclton In wriiich the housing is
located regarding the condition of the structure and operation of the
housing or senrices.

4.7. The Contractor may charge program participants rent and utilities (heat, hot water).
However, the amount charged may not exceed the maximum amounts specified.In HUD
regulations (24 CFR 578.77). Olher services such as cable, air conditioning, telephone,
Internet access, cleaning, parking, pool charges, etc. are at the participant's option.

4.8. The Contractor shall have any staff charged In full or part to this contract, or counted as
i^tch. complete weekly or bi-weekly timesheets.

5. Contractor Financial Management System

5.1. Fiscal Control: The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting
procedures that ensure proper disbursement of. and accounting for, grant funds and any
required rwnfederal expenditures. This responsibility applies to funds disbursed In direct
operations of the Contractor.

5.2. The Contractor shall maintain a financial management system that complies with 2 CFR
part 200 or such equivalent system as (he State may require.
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Coolfactors OWigatlons: The Contractor covenants end aflrees that all funds received by the C^lrector
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligib^
Individuals and. In the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1  Compliance with Federal and State Laws; If the Contractor Is permitted to delcrmirie the etitf billty
of Individuals such ellgibaity determination shall be made In accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulatiorts. orders, guidelines, polictes and procedures.

2. Time 8fKJ Manner of Ootormlnatlon: Etigibimy determinations shall be made on forms ^
the Oepartrhent for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescnbed by
the Departmani.

3 Documentation: In addition to the delorminalicn forms required by the Department, the Contractor
Shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder. whk#» file shall Incfude aD
InformaUon necessary to support an eligibility delermlnailon and such other InformaUon as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department wtth all forms and documentatwn
regarding ellglbUity determinations that the Department may request or require.

4  Falr.Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder.» os
Individuals declared Ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determtnation. The
Contractor hereby coverxanls an6 agrees that an applicants for services shaH be pained to fUl out
an apptlcatton form and tbal each applicani or re-applicant shall be Informed of his/her nght to afair
hearing In accordarve with Department regulations.

5. Cratulllea or Klckbacka: The Contractor agrees that it is e breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employmont on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Conlractor or
the State In order to Influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The Slate may tcrmir«le this Contract and any sutK»nlrecl or sub-agreement rt li Is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any ofTidals. officers, employees or agenls of the Contractor or Subcontractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained In the Contract or In any
other document, contract or understanding, it Is expressly understood and agreed by the parijw
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs Ino^ed for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
ar^ no payments shall be made for expenses Incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the Individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination lhai the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions off Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained In the Contract, nothing
therein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
wttlch exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality ol such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to Ineligible IndivWuab or olher third party
funders for such service. If at any tlmo during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder. the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used •
payments hereurxler to reimburse Items of expense other than such costs, or has received^j^nt
In excess of such costs or In excess of such rates charged by the Coniracior to Ineligible Individuals
or olher third party funders. the Dopartmenl may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder. in which event now rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amounlof any prior reimbursement In

excess of costs;

owiyi*

EjWWi C - Sp«dai PfovWw ConWdo* Irtileh

P»5»1of5



DocuSign Envelope ID: 43257A6B-B337-4A4C-9C6D-9BFD8AAA69F1

Now Hompshire Oepartmont of Health and Human Sorvlcoa
Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repaymont d Iho excess payment by the Contractor In which oveol lalure to make
such repaymeni shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractof is
permihad to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor aorees to
reimburse the Department for alt funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any Individual vd>o is found by the Department to be InellgiWe for such servlcesal
any lime during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY;

8. Matnlenanco of Records; In addition to the ellgibaity records specified above. theContracior
covenants and agrees to maintain the followir^ records during the Contract Period;

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all <»sl9
end other expenses incurred by the Contractor In the performance of the Contract, aM w
Income recalved or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, sarf recorts to be
matnialned In accordance wilh accounting procedures and practices which sumctently and
property reflect ai) such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to lr>clude. without limllatkm, all ledgers, books, records, end original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials. Inventories, vaiuauow oi
In-kind contribultons. labor time cards, payrcfls. and other records requested or required by the
Department. ^ ♦

8 2 SiaUstlcal Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for ea^ redprent ot
services during the ConUact Period, which records shaP indude eP records of applicalion^
eitaibaity (induding all forrns required to determine eligibility for each such rcdplenl). records
regarding the provision of services ortd all Invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate end as prescribed by the Oepartmeni regulations, the
Contractor shaP retain medica! records on each paticnt/redplent of services.

9 Audit- Contractor shaP submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the dose of the
eaency fiscal year. U b recommended that the report be prepared In accordance with the projrts on of
CrfTice of Management and Budget CIrculaf A.t33. "Audits of Stales. Local Governments, and NonProfit Oroanizallons'and the pfovblons of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organliations.
Pfograma. ActMIlea and Fuf>cOons. tesued by the US General Accounting Offico (GAO standards) as
they pertain to fmandal compliance audits.

91 Audit and Review; During the term of this Controcl and the period for retention hereundw. the
Department, the United Stales Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts end transalpls.

0 2 Audit LlabPities: In eddltioo to and not In any way in llmliaiion of obligations of the Conlract. it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall bo held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department. eP payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an

.  exception.

10. Confldontlallty of Rocofde: Ail Information, reports, and records maintained
In connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confid^ial and shad not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulalions of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure ol such information, dtedosure be made to
public officials requiring such Information in connedlon with i^ir officiat duties end for ̂ r^es
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Conlract: and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for eny purpwe not
directly connected with the admWslralion of the Department or the Contractor's responsfbi illes v^h
respect to purchased services hereunder Is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient.
attorney or guardian.

Mfiyii
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NotwUhslandinQ anything to the contrary oonialned heroin Iho covonante and condiUone contained In
the Paragraph shall sunrlve ihe termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reporta: Fiscal end StatisUcal: The Contractor agrees to sobmit the foHowing reports at thefoltowing
limes If requested by the Oepartmcnt. ^
11.1. interim Financial Reports: Wrttten Interim financial reports containing a detailed descrtptionor

all costs end non-enowabie expenses Incurred by Ihe Controctof to the date of the report end
containing such other Information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
Justify Ihe role of payment hereunder. Such Flnandai Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11 2 Final Report: A final report shaP be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shsll be In a form saUsfaciory to the Department and shall
contain a summery statement of progress toward goels and objectives stated In the Proposal
end other Inform&tion required by the Dopsrtmenl.

12 Compiellon of Servtcoe: Dtsallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of unUs provWed for In the Centred end upon payment of the price llmitalton
hereunder. the Contract and afl the cWlgaUons of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as.
by the terms of the Contract ere to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract end/or
survive the termination of the Contred) shall terminate, provided however, that If. upon review ofihe
Fiftol Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Cootrador m
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its dbcretlon. to dedud the amount of such
expenses as are disallovred or to recover such sums from the Conlrador.

13. Credits: All documents, ftolices. press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulling from the performance of the services of the Conlrad shall Indude thefoilowing
statement: ^ ^
131 The preparaUon of tWs (report, document etc.) was financed under o Conlrad with the State

of New Hampshire. Department of Hsallh and Human Services, with funds provided In part
by the State of New Hampshire end/or such other funding sources as were availaWe or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval end Copyrtght Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contrad shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, produdioo.
dlslribuUon or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced. Including, but nol limited to. brochures, resource diredories. protocols or guidelines,
posters. Of reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contrad wllhout
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Oper^lon of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any fadlltles
for providing services, the Conlrador shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of. federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any PuWlc Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall Impose an order or duty upon the controclor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of Ihe services at such facOity. II any govemmenial llconse or
permit shaR be required for the operation of the said fsdiily or the performance of the said services,
the Contfador vrin procure said license or permit, and will at an times comply with the terms and
conditions of each auch license or permlL In connedlon with the foregoing requiremenis. the
Conlrador hereby covenants and agrees that, during ihe term of this Centred the fadlilies shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshaland
the local Are protedlon agency, end ahall be In conformance with local building ar>d zoning codes, by-
taws and reguiaUons.

16 Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunlly Ran (EEOP) to the Office for CMl Rights. Offioe of Justice Programs (OCR). If tt has
received a single award of SSOO.OiW or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more end has 50 or

emUlC-SpvUslPnjvtslons Controcbx lAlUflh
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more efnpk)y©e#. II wfll n^alrttain a currerti EEOP on filo and submit on EEOP CertificatJon Form to the
OCR, certiV"9 ^ is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000. or public grantees
with f^r than 60 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the redpiont win provide en
6E0P Certification Form to ̂  OCR certifying it is not required to submii or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit ofganlzalions. Indian tribes, and medicel end educational InstlluUons are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submli a certHication form to the OCR to dalm the exempUon.
EEOP Certification Forms are avaflable si: http:y/www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdt8/cert.pdf.

17 Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As daiified by Executive Order 13166. Improving Access to
Services for persons wllh Limited English Proftdency. end resulUng agency guidance, nattonalorlgln
dIscrlmlnaUon Indudes discrimlnaUon on the basis of limited English profcioncy (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and TlUe VI of the CMl
Rights Act of 1964. Contractors must lake reasonable steps to ensure thai LEP persons have
moenlr^l access to iu programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contfector Employee Whistleblowor Protections: The
foOowing shatJ eppty to all contracts that exceed the Slmdifed Acquisition Threshold as defined In48
CFR 2.1d1 (currentty. $150,000)

CONTRACTOft EMPtOYCE WMISTLEBLOWER RiOHTS AND REQUIREMEWT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WkjSTUBLOwer RiOMTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whl8tlel)lower rights
end remedies In the pilot program on Contractor employee whbtleblowor protecUons established at
41 U.S.C. 47l2bysect{on828of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall Inform to employees In writing, In the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whlstleWovrer rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described In section
3.906 of the Federal Acquisition Re(^Jlatlon.

(c) The C^ontractor shall Insert the substance of this dause, Induding this paragraph (c). in all
subcontracts over the simplified ecquisitlon threshold.

19. Subcontractofe: DHHS recognizes that the Conlraclor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions lor efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accounlabllity for the functionfs). Priof to
subconuactlng. the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's abniiy to perform the delegated
funcllon(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifics activities and reporiing
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or Imposing sanctions if
the subcontrado/'s perfornnance is not adequate. Subconi/actors are aubjocl to the same contreciual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor Is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Ccnlractor delegates a fundlon to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the foUowing:

19.1. ■ Evaluate the prospeclive subconiraclor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have 8 written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
. rosponsfWlities and how sanctlons/revocaiton will be managed if the suboonuactor's
performance Is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

oanvil
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19.4. Provido to OHMS en annual achodule Idenlifyinp at) subcontractors, deleoatod (unctlonsand
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's pertormance will bo reviewed

19.5. OHMS shall, at Its dtscrelion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor Identifies defWendes or areas for improvemen! are Identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

20. Contract Deflnltlcna:

20.1. COSTS: Shall mean those direct and Indirect Items of expense determined by the Oopartrnentto be allowable and reimbursable In accordance with cost and accounting principles established
In accordance with state end federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

20.2. DEPARTMENT: NH Oepartmeni of Heanh and Human Services.

20.3. PROPOSAL: H appllcable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a
form or forms required by the Department and contaWng a description of the services and/or
goods to be provided by the Contractor In eccordance with the terms and conditions of the
Contract and setting forth t^ total cost end sources of revenue for each service to be provided
under the Contract.

t

20.4. UNIT: For each service thai the Conuactor Is to provide to oliglWe Individuals herBundor. ̂all
mean that period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department arxJ specified
in Exhibit B of tha Contract.

20 5 FEDERAt-ZSTATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, nrles. orders, and
policies, etc. are referr^ to In the ConUacl. the said reference shall be deemed to mean
all such laws, regulations, etc. as they may be amended or revised from lime to time. .

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

ewivii
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fieviaONS TO standard contract

1. Revlalono to Fonn P-37, General Pfovtelono

V1. FUriinn A ^^iiionfll Natum of Aoreemeni. Is leplacad as follows:
4. cQNomoNAL op agreement.

Notwilhstanding any provision of iWs Aflraement to the contrary. Edl obtigatlorw of tho Staia
hereunder. Indudirtg wtthoul limitation, the continuance of payments. In whole or in part.
urxJer tWs Aoreement are cor^tlngont upon contlnuod approprlaUon or availablDty of
Indudlnp any subsequent chartgos to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any etste or federal iegWailvo or exoculivo action that reduces. eUmlnates. or. otherwise
rTK)d*(riod the appropriation or evaHabfllty of funding for this Agreemer^ and ̂
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or m pan. In no event eh^ the
State be llaWe for eny payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or avaOaWe funds.^
the event of a reduction, terminatton or modlficaUon of appropriated or avaDaWe funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available. If ever.
The Slate shall have the right to reduce. tormlr«te or modify services under iWs ̂ reemenl
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or
modification. The Slate shall rwt be required to transfer funds from any other source or
account Into the Account(s) kJenilfied m block 1.6 of the General Provisions. Account
Number, or any other account In the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

1.2. Section 10. Termination, is emended by adding the following language:

10.1 The Slate may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discrei^ of
the Slate. 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the Stele is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10 2 In the event of earty termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination develop and submit to the State a Transttton Plan for services under the
Agreement,', including but not IlmUed to. Identifying tho present and future f>eeds of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and estalriishes a process to meet those needs.

10 3 The Controctor shall fuDy cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide delaled
InformaOon to support the Transition Plan Including, but not limited to. any Information or
data requested by the Slate related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Ran to the State
as requested.

10 4 In the event that services urwlor the Agreement. includlr>g but rwt limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are iransltloned to having services delivered by another
entity Inducting contracted providers or the Stale, the Contractor shaU provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services In the Transition Ran.

10 5 The Corttraclor shall establish a melhcx) of notifying ctienls end other affected Individuals
about tho transition. The Conuactor shall Indude the proposed comrnunJcaiions In Its
Transllion Ran submitted to the State as described above.

2. Renewal

2 1. The Department reserves the right to extend this agreement for up to one (1) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, written agreement of the
parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Coundl.

ejWbUC-t-RevTjloni/EiMpeonstpSttftdwC Comma Lingu*®® Contmoor Wflah
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CERTIFtCATlON REGARDING DRUG-fREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor Wcntlfled In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions ofSections 5151-5160 ofthe Drug-Free workplace Ad of 1988 (Pub. L 100^90, Tilte V. SubtiteO; 41
U.S.C. 701 at seq.), end further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, es Identified In Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I • FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This esertlficatioo Is required by the reoulations Implementing Sedions 5151-5160 of the Owg-Free
Woikolace Ad of 19B8 (Pub. L. lOOSQO. Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The Januery 31.
198S regulattons were amended end published as Part II of the May 25. ISSO.Fedefst Register (pages
21681-21691). and require certificaijon by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees artd sub
contractors). prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017 63C(c) of the
regulallon provides that a grantee (and by Inference, sub-grantees and sub-contradors) that is a Slate
may elect to make one certlflcalion to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal flscel year covered by the certlflcalion. The certificate set out betow is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certificatton or violation of the certificaiion shall be grounds for suspension of paymerjls. suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send rt to;

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129Pleasanl StreeL
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1  The grantee certifies that it will or will continue lo provide a drug-free workplaca by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unla^l manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of.a controDed substance is prohibited in the grantee s
workplace and specif^ng the actons that wBl be taken against employees for vioblion of such
prohibillon;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug oounseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; ar^d
1.2.4. The penalties that may be Imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring In the workplace; . i.
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance o! the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the emptoyee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the Statement: and

■ 1.4.2. Notify the employer In writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring In the workplace no later than five calendar days after such •
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in vmting. within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such oonviction.
Employers of convicted employees rruisl provide notice, including position titte, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhibft 6 - CertKiMIlM rtflinllnQ Drug Fr»« V*ftdw IftltWi- geflineriM ftginiing rrww —- ■
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has deslpnated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall Include the
Identification number(8) Of each affected grant;

16 TaWng one of the following actions, within 30 cetendar days of receiving notice undersubparaoraph 1.4.2, with respect to any emptoyee whois so convicted
1 $ 1 TaWng appropriate personnel action against such an emptoyee, up to and Inctuding

termirtotion. conslslent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1073. as
amended; or

162. Requiring such employee to partidpate salisfactoriiy in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,
law enforcenfwnt, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain e drug-free workplace through
Implementation of paragraphs 1.1.1.2.1.3.1.4.1.8. and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert In the space provided below Iho 8ilc(s) for the performance of work done m
connection with the specirtc grant

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, stale, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ If there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

vendor t:,..

TVat: Ch.e.r

EiMba D - CerUflcsOon fSQsrdin® Onig Ffst Vender InWsh
Wotkpiics RtduUsmenU

CUOMHj/it«TO Pipe 2 of 2 Dsle



DocuSign Envelope ID: 43257A6B-B337-4A4C-9C6D-9BFD8AAA69F1

Now Himpshiro Oeportmont ol Health and Human Sorvlcea
•  Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REfiARDIHC LOBBYING

The Vendor identiflod In Section 1.3 ol the General Provixionft agrees to comply wHlh the provisions of
Section 319 of Pubte Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified In Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the Genera) Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

Programs (tndicete eppUcable program covered):
•Temporary Assist8r>ce to Nee^ Famifies under Title IV«A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Tltte IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medieaid Program under TiUe XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Tide VI
•Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that

1  No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress In
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment or
modification of any Federal contract grant, loan, or cooperative agroemant (and by specific mention
6Ub-gr3r)tee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
Influencing or attempting to Influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a KAember of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract grant, loan, or cooperative egreemant (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor). the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, In accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit 6-1.)

3. The undersigned shell require that the language of this certification be included In the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (Induding subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that aD 5ut>-fecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed wfien this transaction
was made or entered Into. Submission of this certificallon Is a prercqublie for making or entering Into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Tide 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fafls to file the required
certification shaU be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 end not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor NamerrKt

'A/zg
Date

/lQ^
Nsfhe:

Tit)e:cAicf

cuomvitoro
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AMP OTHER REffpUfilBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to compty with the provisions of
ExecutivD Office of the President. Executive Order 12S49 end 4S CFR Part 76 regardmg Determent.Suspension artd Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and l. 12 of the General Provisions execute the foHowing
Certification;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION . . .
1. By Signing at^ submitting this proposal (conlracl). the prospective primery participant is providing the

certiflcetion set out below.

2  The tnabnily of a person to provide the certification required below wtD not newseority resun^donlol
Of participatton In thb covered transaction. M necessary, the prospective parCclpant eh^ simmlt an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or ^
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS)
determinaUon whether to enter Into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective
participant to furnish a certlficaiioo or an expianstion shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The cerHncalion In this clause Is e material representation of fact upon whit^ reliance was plac^
when OHMS determined lo enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certificaOon. In addilion lo other reme^s
available to the Federal Government. DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default

4. The prospective primary participant shaD provide Immediate written notice to the DHHS age^y to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant
that Its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction,* 'debarred.* 'suspended,' 'InellgiWe, 'lower^tier covered
transaction.' 'participant,* 'person." 'primary covered ifansaction,' 'principal,' 'proposal.' and
'voUintarlfy excluded.' as used in this dause. have ihe meanings set out In the Oennlbons and
Coverage sections of Ihe rules Implementing Executive Order 12549; 45 CFR Part 78. See the
attached definitions.

6  The prospective primery participant agrees by eubmltting this proposal (contract) that should the
oroposed covered transaction be entered Into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lovrar tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntanfy excluded
from paftidpatioo in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7  The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will 1^^® Ihe
clause titled 'Certification Regarding Debarment Suspension, IneligibUjty and Voluntary Exclusion-
Lower Tier Covered Trarvsections.' provided by DHHS. without modification. In all lower tier covered
transactions end in aD solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8 A participant In a covered transaction may roty upon a certification of a prospective partl^anUn a
tower tier covered l/ansaclton that it is not debenod, suspended. Ineligible, or Involuntanlyexctuded
from the covered trensaction. unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which il determines'the eligibility of Its principals. Ea^
participant may. but is not required to. che^ the Nonprocuremenl List (of excluded parties).

9 Nothlrw contained In the foregoing shall be construed to require eslaWishmenl of a system of records
in order to render in good fafth the certificaUon required by this clause. The knowledge and

ExhM F - CenaraUon Rogirtfng Debtrmeftl, Su»ponileft Venflpr InBtah
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information of a participani Is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for trensactlDns authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a partiapant In a
covered transaction knowingly enters inlo a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or volunlarily excluded from partidpation In iWs Uansaction. in
addition to other remedies aveOetrie to the F^eral government. OHHS may terminate this traruactjon
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS ....... u ^ u.
11. The prospective primary participdnt certifies to the best of Its knowledge end belief, that It and ra

prindpals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

votunterily excluded from covered tronsoctions by any Federal department or ager^cy:
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) bacn convicted of or had

a clvil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with oblairilng. altempt'ing to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public trensaction; violation of Federal or State anlltru^
statutes or commission of embeizlenwnt. theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presenUy Indicted for otherwise cflminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. State or local) with commlsston of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have fK>t within a throe-year period preceding this applicatlori/proposal had one or moro pubtic
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant Is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shell attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

lower TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By sigr^lng and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective tower tier participant, as

defined In 4S CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that U and Its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared Ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from partrclpatlon In this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant te unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participan! shall attach en explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further egrees by submitting this proposal (contract) thai It will
Include this clause entiUed •Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension. Inellgibllily. and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transaciions.' without modification In eD lovrer tier covered
transactions end in all sblicltations for lower tier covered transactions.

Vendor Name.TV t*i>< irtc^ttLj

/ ̂/ZjP
N^e: H-
"" Chi^f. hcA*'
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QAN12ATI0NS ANDUAL TREATMENT OPFDPRAL MONDISCRtMIN
WHISTLEBLOWCT PROTECTIONS

The Venttor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by o'
representative as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the foltowlng
certification:

vendor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontfaclore to compty. with any applJcablo
federal noodiscrtminatton requirements, which may include:
- the Omnibus Crime Conlroi and Safe Streets Act of 1063 (42 U.S.C. Swtion
recipients of federal funding under this statute from dlscrimlnaUng.
the dcHvory of seivices or benefits, on the baste ol race, color. rGligion. n^al ongin. and sex. The ActXi^ cSSn r^nls to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;
- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Provemion Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. ***
raterence the civil riflhts obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recip»ente of federal funding under ̂
statute eri prohitxted from discriminating, either in employmenl practiw or in
benefits, on the baste of race, color. rBUgion. national ongm, and sex. The Act mciudes Equal
EmploymenI Opportunity Plan requirements;

me Civn Riohls Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal fif^i^aS^a^Trn dtec^mir^ the basis of race, color, or national orioin in any program or ectnnty).
. the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794)i which prohlblls
assistance from discriminating on the baste of disablUty. m regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits. In any program or activity;

ihB Americans wilh OlsablDlies Actof 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures eqiial opportunity for persons with ^
government services, public accommodafions, commercial lacliilies. and transportation.
- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681. 1683.1688-86). which prohibits
dtscriminaUon on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs:
me Aoe DiscriminaUon Actof 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). which prohtoits discriminalion on the

basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment di^mination;
- 28 C F R Dl 31 (U.S. (department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28
rtJ S DMartmen! of Justice Reguialions - Nondlsciimination; Equal Employment Opportunity. Policies
ind Procedures): Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws
oroanaalions); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundaiwntal pnnwples and poltcy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C F R Dt 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment
OrLnizationsl- arid WhisUebiower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The Natronal Defense Authorization
Ac?(NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239. enacted January 2.2013) the PiW Program^
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whisttebtower Protections, which
reprisal for certain vrhistio blowing activilies In connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which 's ^
aoency awards the grant False certification or violation of the certificaUon shaB^ ̂
^pension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.
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In the event a Federal or Slate court or Federal or Stale admlnlBtratlve agency makes a finding of
discnminalion after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, natioritf wrgin, or sex
aflainst a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civij Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or divlston within the Oepartmenl of Heallh and Human Services, and
to the Department of Heallh and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified in Sections i end 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

I. By signing and submitting Ihb proposal (contracl) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions
Indicated above.

Vendor Name:-r>»c t4.ut

'JiM.
Q3(g warTp. rv^j^M..hr H.•  twywgi • W w , - W-- —
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Lew 103-227, Part C - Envtronmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pfo-Chiklren Act of 1994
(Ad), requires that amcklng not be permitted in any portion of any Indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularty for the provision of health, day care, education,
or Dbrary services to children under the age of 18. If the services are funded by Federal pfograms etther
directly or through State or bcal governments, t>y Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to cWWren's aervicea provided In private residences. facBlties funded solely by
fi/tedicare or iWledtcaid funds, and portions of fac'ililles used for inpetient drug or alcohol Ueaimeni Fatture
to conriply with the provisions of the lew may result in the imposition of a cMI monetary penalty of up to ^
$1000 per day and/or the Imposition of en admlnistralive compliance order on the responsible entity. |

The Vendor Identined in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identifiod in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute ihe following
certification:

1  By signing and submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
aO applicable provisions of PuWic Law 103-227. Part C. known as the Pro^hlldron Act of 1994.

Vendor NamerTVk a-lui-Ci-s

Oate Name;

I
I

Exhlbl) H • CwtificiiUon Reeirding Vendor IntUU
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY
ppSINESS ASSOCIATE
AGREEMENT

The Vendor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply wHh the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. ?Mc Lew 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associateB. As defined herein. "Business
Associate* shall mean the Vendor and subcontractors and agents of the Vendor that receive,
use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and 'Covered Entity"
shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Oepertmem of Health end Human Services.

(1 Deflnltlona.

a. "Breach' shaD have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of TtUe 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entity' has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Trtle 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Dgslanaled Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data AQoreoation* shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation In 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

(. ■^enlth Care Operations* shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act" means the Health Informalion Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Ad, TilleXlll, Subtitle D. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996. Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information. 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. 'Individuar shai) have the same meaning as the term "individuar in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a persona) representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Information' shali have the same meaning as the term 'protected health
information" In 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. ^

EUAftt Vflndof \nU%hnf^
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I. 'Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by laW In 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. '^ecretarv' shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Senrices or
his/her designee.

n. 'Security Rule" Shan mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

o. Unsecured Protected Health Intofmation' means protected health Information that is not
secured by a techrwiogy standard that reisers protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to ur^authorlzed lr>div}duala er>d b developed or endoraed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. other Defiftillons - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164. as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Buslneaa Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Heatth Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disdose. maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the senrlces outlined urtder
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officere, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy arid Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disdose PHI;
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. /\s required by law. pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
lil. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disdosure. (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be hold confidentially and
used or further disdosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party: and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the H\PAA Privacy. Security, and Breach f^olification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI. to the extent It has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not. unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disdose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that H is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Eniity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disdosure. the Business

3/2014 Evhlbl I Vendor InUats
Health Iniunnce PoftabiOty Act ,
Buaineta Aaaodale Agreement

Page 2 of 6 Dale /



DocuSign Envelope ID: 43257A6B-B337-4A4C-9C6D-9BFD8AAA69F1

New Hampshire Department of HeaRh and Human Services

ExhIbR 1

Associate shell refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Businew ̂ sociale
ahaD be bound by such additional restrictions and.shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

<3) Obllnatlong and Activities of Buglnew AagoeW^.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of prote^cted
health infofmatlon not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when It becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall Include, but not be
limited to: ~

0 The nature and extent of the protected health Information Involved. Including the
types of Identifiers and the likelihood of re-identlfication;

Q The unauthorized person used the protected health Information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.
I

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 46 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of Its Internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

6. Business Associate shall require ail of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein. Including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who wiH be receiving^I
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and Indemnification from su^
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f  Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices ail
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliar»ce with the terms of the Agreenf>ent.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate 8t\all provide access to PHI In a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an Individual cor^tained in a Designated Record
Sot. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and Incorporate any such amcr>dment to enable Covered Entity to fulnll its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and infoimation related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

i. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k  In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded r^uesls. However, if forwarding the
indivlduars request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Assoaale
shall Instead respond to the Individual's request as required by such law and noltfy
Covered Entity of such response, as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwse agreed to In
the Agreement Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction Infeasible. for so long as Busines^^^
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in rts sole discrolion. requbes that the
Business Associate destroy any or at) PHI. the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obltofltlona of Covered Eritltv

a  Covered Entity shall notify Buslr^ess Associate of any changes
Notice of Prtvacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance vnth 45 CFR Sed.ton
164.520. to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate s
use or dlsdosure of PHI.

b  Covered Entity shall prompUy notify Business Assoclato of any Ranges in, o]"
of permission provided to Covered Entity by Individuals whose PH
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR section
164.508 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Tefmination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 ol the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Aoreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Busiriess
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit 1. The Covered Entity may either irniMdiately
terrranate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to wre the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. ...
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Mlscollaneoos

a. npfinHions and RrnMintorv RftferenoBS. All terms used, but "O*
shaU have the same meaning as frose terms in ttie h th i i to
from time to time. A reference In the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as In effect or as
amended.

h  Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to lake s\iCh adion as is
SeSiiir^o amend the Agreement, from time to lime as Is necewa^ for Covwed
Entity to comply >vHh the changes in the requirements of HIPAA. the Privacy an6
Security Rule, and applicable federal and slate law.

c, nata Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no owr^ership rights
wflth respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interoreiatlon. The parties agree thai any ambiguity in the Agreement sh^l ̂  resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply writh HIPAA. the Privacy and Secunty Rul^^ yp

ExhibftI VwfJoflnaib JIl
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e. Seoreoatkin. U any lerm or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
oersonfs) or circumstance is heW invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
wnditions which can be glvert effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit 1 are declared severable.

Survival Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI.
dJsSuctlon of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in jection (3) I. the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termlnaUon of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit

Departmenl of HoaJlh and Human Services -r>c

The State I _ Name of the Vendo^ ,hebtaie

Signature of AuthoriMO Kepresemanve oisfpniuw*'of Authorized Representative
f  .Q/iyiUni/Al h
Name of Authorized Representative Narne dr^Jthorized Representative

Title of Authorized Repm^ntett^ Title of Authorized Representative
\ 11 / |"7^

Date ' ' Diti ^
2,02.0

Exhlbftl Vendor
HetBh Inwranco PertJtbiBrjr AdHetBS Inwraftco Koruoiwy act i / / >.
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rcPTlPlCATIOM REQARDINQ THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABtHTV AND TRAN$PAWgN^Y
^ ̂ \ rcTrFFATAiCOWPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) raquiios prime <»* individual
Federal granta equal to or greater than 125,000 and awarded on or after
data related to executive compensation and associated flrst-tter sub^rants of $25,000 or more. If the
Initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result In a total award equalto or over
$25 000 the award Is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, es of the date of the award.
In bccordance with 2 CFR Pert 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (OHMS) must report the following Information for any
eubaward or contract eward subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award
3. Funding egancy
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
$. Program source

6. Award titte descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
0. Principle place of performance
9. Unique Identifier of the entity (DUNS#)
10 total compensation and names ol the top five executives If:

10.1. More than 00% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Comper«ation information Is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime Brant recipients must sut>mit FFATA required data by the end o( the month, plus 30 days, In which
the award or avrard amendment Is made. , ,
The Vendor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply
The Federal Funding Accountability ervl Transparency Act. Public Law 109-202 and Publ« Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Repotting Subaward end Executive Compensation information), and rer^r ag^s
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following CertificaUon: ^ . .w
The below named Vendor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH Oepai^ni
of Health and Human Services and to compty with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accountability and Transparency AcL

VendorNamerfte.Uuii-S rDcr>+wJ
C^n-hLM, JZtJi

afe N^e; H-

CUre»*tVnoiil

E*hWiJ - CflrtfflciUon RoflBftfog F«d«ft! Funding vender inWiU
AocouMebDly And Trtnipwency Ad (FFATA) Compll*f<«
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FORMA

As Iho Vendor Identified In Soctton 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify thai the responses to the
belov^ listed questions ere true end eccurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity Is: /Qf^ ̂ ̂  ̂

2  In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organize^
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans grants, sub-g ond/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more In annuei
gross'revenues from U.S. federal conuacls. subconUBCts. bans, grants, sobgrenls. and/or
cooperative ogreements?

y NO YES

If the answer to d2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above Is YES, please answer the fottowing:

3  Does the public have access to Information about the compensation of the executives in ywr
business or organization through periodic reports fited uf*der section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Secunties
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 7Bo(d)) oi section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

if the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount'.

Amount:

Amount

Amount:

Amount:

cuQ>wS/itcr7i]
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning In this document:

1. "Broach' means the loss of control, compronrMse. unauthorized disclosure,
ufwuthorized ecquisilion. unauthorized access, or eny similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users end for en other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally Wentlfiablo
Information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information.' Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" In section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. 'Computef Security Incident" ehall have the same moanir^g 'Computer Security
IrKldenl" In section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61. Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. 'ConTtdential Information' or 'Confidential Data' means all confidential information
disclosed by ona party to the other such as ell medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal Infofmstion Including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any arxJ all information owned or managed by
the State of NH • created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed In the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, end disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI). Persona! Informatiori (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FT!). Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential tnfonmalion.

4. "End User* means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
OHMS data or deriyalive data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA* means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 end the
regulefions promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which Includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to e
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the'unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowtedgo. instruction, or
consent..Incidents Include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrooting of physical or electronic

VS.LWIupdBloKyoene ErfyWK ConWOWWOto
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malK all of which may have the polentlal (o pul the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7  "Ooen Wireless Network' means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Intonation
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, ^d
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an o^n
network and not adequately secure for the transmisston of unencrypted Pi. PFi.
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

a  -Personal Information- (or "PI") means information which can be used to distir>guish
Of trace an Indhridual's identity, such as their name, social secunty number, ̂ rsonal
informatton as defined tn New Hampshire RSA
alone or when combined with other persona! or idenllfying information wWch is Imked
or linkable to a specific Individual, such as date and place of birth, mothers maiden
name, etc.

9  -Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of f{®®^
Information at 45 C.F.R Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
Stales Department of Health and Human Services.

10 -Protected Health Information' (or -PHr) has the same meaning as prowded in the
■ definition of -Protected Health Information" In the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11 "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Et^ronic
■ Protect^ Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information- means Protected Health Infofrnatlon that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. responsibilities of DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1  The Contractor must not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Infomiation
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further. Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use. disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

.  FiMbiiK Coo»»eto»Wilah_iM_ '
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request for dlsctosure on the t>a5is lhal it is required by law. in response to a
subpoena, etc.. *vithout first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. tf DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions end must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may no\ be used for
any other purposes that are r^t indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of Inspecting to confinm compliance wilh the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. AppHcalion Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
Of portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of Irartsrhitting DHHS
data.'

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email Is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such Information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Oropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confrdential Data.

6. Ground MaB Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certifiod ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User Is employing poruble devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted ary) password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

uww iftiamwon 1 1^
Sftcurtly RequIr«menU 11^17^

PeMlolS

VSLMUpdrtoiflWtfi ConlfwrwlnWeb
DKHS InromtOon



OocuSign Envelope ID; 43257A6B-B337-4A4C-9C6D-9BFD8AAA69F1

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

wirelee# network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User Is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
Installed on the End User's mobile device(8) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User, is employing en SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders end suWolders used for transmitting ConfkJenttai Data vriil
be coded for 24.houf auto-deletion cyde (i.e. Confidential Date will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of Information.

til. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor vrill have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in vrtiatever form it may exist, unless, olherwise required by law or permitted
under this ConlrecL To this end. the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees II vrill not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
doud computing, doud service or doud storage capabilities, and Indudes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can Impact Slate of NH systems
and/or Department confidenlial information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for Its End
Users in support of pfOlectir>g Department confidential Information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
In a secure location and identified In section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be In a
FedRAMP/HlTECH complianl solution and comply with ell applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. AH servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operatir^g systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anli-spyware. and anli-maiware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have eggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.
6  The Contrectof agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's

Chief Information OfTicef in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
Infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidenlial Informatton on its systems (or its
sub^ntrectof systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such dale upon request or contract tefmlnation; and will
obtain written certincaUon for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractofs as a part of or>goir>g. emergericy. arxl or disasl^
recovery operations. When no longer in use. electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
In accordance vnlh industry-accepted standards for s.ecure deletion and media
sanittzation or otherwise physically destfoylr>g the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publlcalion 800-e8. Rev 1. Guidelines
for fytedia Sanillzation. National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document end certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide writtenxcertiftcatlon to the Department
upon request. The written certification will Include details necessary to
demonstrate data has been property destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be joinUy
evaluated by the State and Corttractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the terminetion of, this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3  Unless otherwise spcciriod, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Cootracl. ConUeclor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees, to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or fiies, as follows:

1  The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, martagod. and/or stored In the detlvery
of contracted services.

2 The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential Information throughout the Information lifecycle. where applicable. (fr<^
creation, transformalion, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to etore the data (i.e.. tape. disk, paper, etc.).
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3 The Contractor will maintain appropriate authertticafion and access ^trote to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confideniial infcrmaUon
where applicabld.

4 The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are In place to
detect potential security events that can impact Stale of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5 The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
tJsers in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6  If the Contractor will be sut>-contracting any core functions of the engagement
'  supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor win maintain a

program of an internal process or processes that defines specific wcunty
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7 The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all appllMble
Stale of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization poliaes
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining end mainlaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed arwl signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors pnor to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate purs^nt to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Buslnew Associate Agreemant
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9 The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey Is to enable the ̂ partment and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that rnay
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be complete
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the ConUactor changes.

10. The Contractor will.not store, knoviringly or unknowingly, any Slate of Nw Hampshire
or Department data ofl^ore or outside the boundaries of the United States untess
prior express written consent Is obtained frdm the Infoimatlon Secunty Office
leadership member within the Department.

11 Data Security Breach Uability. In the event of any security breach ContrBCtor shaH
make efforts to invesOgate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the bfeach. including but not limited to: credit monitoring services. maHing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes end regulations regarding the
privacy end security of Conndential Information, end must in-all other respects
maintain the privacy ervl security of PI arxi PHI at a level and scope that Is not less
than the level end scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including
but not ilmiled to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. §
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy end Secunty Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govem protections for indhddualty Wenllflable health
information and as appTicablo under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of (he Confidential Data end to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level end
scope of security that is not less than the level, and scope of security requirements
est8t>lished by the Stale of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at httpsi/Zwww.nh.gov/doitA'endor/index.hlm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement informelion relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Conlraclor will notify the Slate's Privacy Officer and the
Stale's Security Offi<»r of any security breach Immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This Includes a confxJential Information breach, computer
security Incident, or suspected broach which affects or Includes any State of Now
Hampshire systems that connect to the Slate of New Hampshire network.'

15. Cor^lractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such OHHS Data to
perform their official duties In connection with purposes identified In this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users;

a  comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above.
Implemented to protect Confidential Information that Is fumished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disdosure.

b. safeguard this Information at all limes.

c. ensure that laptops and other etectronlc devices/media containing PHI. PI, a
PFIere encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Informotion only if encrvoted and being
sent to end being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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^e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.
f  Confidential Information received under this Contract and IndlvlduaDy

identifiabte data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored In an area that is
physically and technoioglcaliy secure from access by unauthorized pe^ns
during duly hours as well as norvduty hours (e.g., door locfcs. card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

q. only euthorized ErvJ Users may transmit the ConrKJential Data. Including any
derivative files corlaininQ personally identifiable information, and In eO cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Contidential Data must be maintained, us^ and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumslances involved.

i  understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not bo
shared with anyone. End Users wiU keep their credential Information secure.
This applies to credonOats used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor Is responsible for oversight and compItanM of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to corvluct ensile Inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations unlll such time the Conndenliai Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the SUIe's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of ary
Security Incidents and Breaches Immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches invoMng PHI In
accordance with the agency's documanlod Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to. and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Conlraclof's procedures must also address how the Contractor will;

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable Information is Involved In Incidents:
3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;
4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents

and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach ratification is required, and. If so. Identify epprppriate
Breach notification methods, liming, source, and contents from among differerit
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Inddents and/or Breeches that implicate PI must be addressed end reported, es
applicable, in accordarvce with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer;

DHHSPrivacyOff1cer@dhhs.nh.90v

8. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformatfonSecurilyOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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